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Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

Katja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-S52-3345 Ext 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: l-$00-735-2964 www.dbhs.Dh.gov

August 28, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabfe Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing contracts with the Contractors listed below to continue providing behavioral-
based intervention Contingency Management programming for individuals with a diagnosed
Opioid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder, by exercising contract renewal options, by increasing the
total price limitation by $349,000 from $275,806 to $624,806 and extending the completion dates
from September 29, 2023 to September 29. 2024, effective September 29, 2023, upon Governor
and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on April 12, 2023, Item
#13.

Contractor Name
Vendor

Code

Area

Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Blue Heron

Neurofeedback and

Counseling, LLC
362670 Statewide $152,251 $192,656 $344,907

Community Council of
Nashua, N.H.

d/b/a Greater Nashua

Mental Health

164112-

8001
Statewide $54,005 $68,336 $122,341

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
275119-

8001
Statewide $69,550 $88,008 $157,658

Total: $275,806 $349,000 $624,806

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2024 and State Fiscal
Year 2025, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractors to continue developing, Implementing,
and providing evidence- and behavioral-based intervention programs known as a Contingency
Management. Contingency Management Programs are effective in reducing cravings, non-
prescribed drug use, and risky behaviors, while increasing treatment attendance and prescribed
medication adherence for individuals with a clinically diagnosed stimulant or opioid use disorder;

Fidelity to the model and its effective application is paramount to an effective program, as
it is with all behavioral based interventions. The Department has been strategic in its approach to
planning and training with national technical assistance on contingency management for staff
implementing the program. All three Contractors have completed a three (3) hour training on
providing Contingency Management with fidelity. In addition, three (3). one (1) hour individual
technical assistance sessions are scheduled with each Contractor for program development
specific to each Contractor's clients. Recruitment of participants has begun and the Contractors
are planning full implementation of the contingency management program beginning September
2023.

Approximately 140 individuals will be served, across all three (3) Contractors, through
September 29, 2024.

The Contractors will implement Contingency Management Programs in conjunction with
the existing evidence-based outpatient and intensive-outpatient substance use disorder treatment
services to provide individuals with positive reinforcement for achieving identified treatment goals
including, but not limited to. attendance at treatment sessions, adherence to prescribed
m^ications for Opioid Use Disorder (DUD) and/or other health conditions, as applicable, and for
evidence of positive behavioral change through the provision of stimulant- and/or opioid-negative
urine specimens.

The Department will monitor services through the review of monthly aggregate and de-
identified data and aftercare survey reports to ensure project deliverables and outcomes are
achieved.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Subsection 1.1
of the original agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to
renew services for one (1) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals with
stimulant and/or opioid use disorder will not have access to supplementary and evidence-based
intervention, which may result in lower treatment retention and engagement rates, decreased
abstinence, and a decline in overall recovery experiences.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

77ie Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services'Mission is lojoin communities and families
in providing opportunities for cUieens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS:

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. SOR GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Vendor Name Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling,-LLC Vendor# 362670

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Arhount

2023 074-500589 , Welfare Assistance- 92057059 $93,305.00 $0.00 $93,305.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $58,946.00 $0.00 $58,946.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $0.00 .  $144,492.00 $144,492.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $0.00 $48,164.00 $48,164.00

Sub Total $152,251.00 $192,656.00 $344,907.00

Vendor Name

Community Council of Nashua, N.H.d/b/a Greater
Nashua Mental Health Vendor# 154112

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $36,094.00 $0.00 $36,094.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $17,911.00 $0.00 $17,911.00

2024 074-500589. Welfare Assistance 92057062 $0,00 $51,252.00 $51,252,00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $0.00 $17,084.00 $17,084.00

Sub Total $54,005.00 $68,336.00 $122,341.00

Vendor Name Hope on Haven Hill, Inc Vendor #275119

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance - 92057059 $43,469,00 $0.00 $43,469.00
2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $26,081,00 $0.00 $26,081.00

.  2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $0,00 $66,006,00 $66,006.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $0.00 $22,002.00 $22,002:00

Sub Total $69,550.00 $88,008,00 $157,558.00

I  Overall Total! $275,806.00! $349,000.00! $624,806.00!

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling, LLC ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 12, 2023 (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, Subsection 1.1, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price.Limitation, to read:

$344,907

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.29, State Opioid
Response (SOR) Grant Standards, to read:

1.29. State Goioid Response.fSGRI Grant Standards

1.29.1. The Contractor must establish formal information sharing and referral agreements
with the Doorways in compliance vyith all applicable confidentiality laws, including
42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive payments for services funded with SGR
resources.

1.29.2. The Contractor must ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doorways are:

1.29.2.1. Completed and ddcurriented in the individual's file; and

1.29.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as needed for payment of
invoices for services provided through SOR-funded initiatives.

1.29.3. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SGR
funds, have a documented history or current diagnoses of Gpioid Use Disorder or
Stimulant Use Disorders (GUD/StifnUD) or are at risk for such.

1.29.4. The Contractor must coordinate completion of Government Performance Results
Act (GPRA) initial interview and associated follow-ups at six (6) months and
discharge for individuals referenced previously.

1.29.5. The Contractor rhust submit a detailed plan within thirty (30) days of contract
effective date for ensuring GPRA completion for all clients receiving SGR funding.

1.29.6. The Contractor must ensure that SGR grant funds are not used to purchase,
prescribe, or provide cannabis or for providing treatment using cannabis. The
Contractor shall ensure:

✓  OS1.29.6.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of GUD/StimUp.^^
Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling, LLC A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

9/1/2023
RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-01-A01 Page 1 of 5 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4FFAB154.7AB6-4676-ABB3-859CE2C6A0EF

1.29.6.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating substance
use or mental health disorders.

1.29.6.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Memorandums of
Understanding that receive SOR funding.

1.29.7. The Contractor must ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals, utilizing SOR
funding.

1.29.8. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor must provide a test
strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation. The
Contractor must ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:

1.29.8.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

1.29.8.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

1.29.8.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

1.29.9. The Contractor must provide services as referenced to eligible individuals who:

1.29.9.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers, including the individual's
primary care provider;

1.29.9.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

1.29.9.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed
regardless of the class of medication.

1.29.10. The Contractor must ensure individuals who refuse to consent to information

sharing with the Doorways do not receive services utilizing SOR funding.

1.29.11. The Contractor must ensure individuals who rescind consent to information sharing
with the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR funding.

1.29.12. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded
Contractors, as requested and directed by the Department, to improve GPRA
collection.

1.29.13. The Contractor must comply with all appropriate Department, State of NH,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), and
other Federal terms, conditions, and requirements, and as amended, and must
collaborate with the Department to understand the aforesaid.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response (SOR) II
Grant, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assisted Listing Nurnber (ALN) 93.788, as
awarded on:

1.1. 08/29/2022, FAIN H79TI083326; and

1.2. 09/30/2023, FAIN TBD, as anticipated pending receipt of the SAMHSA Notice of Award

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 5, to read:

5. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, SPY 2023 Budget through Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1, SFY 2025
Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 8, Subsection 8.1, Paragraph 8.1.3, Su

Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling, LLC A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

9/1/2023
RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-01-A01 . Page 2 of 5 Date
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8.1.3.1, by adding Parts 8.1.3.1.8 through 8.1.3.1.10, as follows:

8.1.3.1.8. Promotional items including, but not limited to, clothing and commemorative items
with added logos for distribution to clients and the community including, but not limited
to. pens, mugs/cups, folders/folios, lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR
75.421(e){3).

8.1.3.1.9. Direct payments to individuals to enter treatment or continue to participate in
prevention or treatment services. See 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b.

8.1.3.1.10. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug.

7. Add Exhibit C-3, Amendment #1, SPY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1, SPY 2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

%
Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling, LLC A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

9/1/2023
RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-01-A01 Page 3 of 5 Date
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All terms and. conditions of the Contract and not modified by this Amendment remain in .full force and
effect. This Amendment shall be effective September 29, 2023, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/1/2023

Date

G—OocuSigned by:
S.

Name;Kat]a s: fox

Title:
Director

Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling, LLC

9/1/2023

Date

— DocuSign«<f by:

Name:Stacie Leclerc

Title: owner

Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling, LLC A-S-1.2

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-01-A01 Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSigned by;EDOcuSigned by;
?4»7aia^tuu60

Date Name: Robyn Guan no
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling, LLC A-S-1.2

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-01-A01 Page 5 of 5
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RFP-2023-OBH-0e-EFFEC-01-A01 E>^ibit C-3, Amendment #1

SFY2024 Budget

NewHamps

Contractor Name:

Budget Requeat for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

hire Department of Health and Human Services

Blue Heron Neurofeedback & Counseling, LLC

Contingency Management Program

9/30/2023 - June 30. 2024

6%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by OHHS

Budget Narrative
ExfJain specific line item costs

included end their direct relationshio

1. Salary & Wages $115,798

2. Fringe Benefits $434

3. Consultants

4. Equipment $491

5.(a) Supplies - Educational CM Rewards $7,449

5.(b) Supplies-Lab

S.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies • Medical

S.(e) Supplies Office $651

6. Travel $248

7. Software $1,971

6. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications $1,890

6. (b) Other • Education and Training $470

8. (c) Other - Other (specify belcw)

Occupancy $3,641

Telephone & Intemel $570

Postape $96

License $112

Umiled English Services $356

Insurance $473

9. Subcontractors/Agreements $1,606

Total Direct Costs $136,256

/

Total Indirect Costs $8,236

TOTAL $144,492

9/1/2023

Paoe 1 of

1
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RFP-2023-DBH-06-EFFEC-01-A01 Exhibit C-4. Amendment #1

SFY2025 Budget

New Hamps

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

hire Department of Health and Human Services

Blue Heron Neurofeedback & Counseling, LLC

Contingency Management Program

July 1. 2024 through September 29. 2024

6%

Line item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS •
Budget Narrative--

'Explain specific line item costs
included and their direct relationship

1. Salary & Wages S38.598

,

2. Fringe Benefits $145

3. Consultants

4, Equipment $164

5.(a) Supplies .• Educational CM Rewards $2,483

S.(b) Supplies • Lab

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies • Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office $217

6, Travel $83

7, Software $657

8. (a) Other - Marl^eting/ Communications $630

8, (b) Other - Education and Training $157

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Occupancy $1,214

Tolephone & Internet $190

Postage $32

License $37

Limited English Services $119 '

Insurance $158

9. Subcontractors/Agreements $535

Total Direct Costs $45,419

Total Indirect Costs $2,745

TOTAL $48,164

(i
9/1/202J

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretar)' of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that BLUE HERON

NEUROFEEDBACK AND COUNSELING, LLC is a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on March 17, 2019. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 811958

Certificate Number: 0006302027

a&.

O

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

■| hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 28th day of August A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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3lue
Heron
Neurofeedback
and Counseling

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

tr- Stacie^^CjIyc hereby certify thai I am the sole Partner, Member or
Manager and the sole offlcer of Blue Heron Netirnfeedhack and Connselin. a limited liability
a limited liability company under RSA 304-C.

1 certify that I am authorized to bind the partnership or LLC. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person
listed above eurrently occupies the position indicated and that they have full authority to bind the
partnership or LLC and that this authorization shall remain valid for thirty (30) days from the date

of this Corporate Resolution.

DATED: 08/28/2023

ATTEST:,

S Wc< Uclerc

Cu> Cr' /^Gf\CK

(Name & Title)

Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling
North Conway, Littleton, Gorham

Phone; 603-356-6400

Fax: 603-413-4666

lnfo@bluehefoncounseling.org
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ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DOrrVYY)

03/21/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

CoverWallet. Inc.

One Liberty Plaza,
Sulte3201

New York. NY 10006

NAMfit^"^ Bradley Martin
Kf.,, (646)844-9933 .

AowEss: customer.servlce(gcoverwalIet.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAicm

INSURER A ACE Fire Underwriters Insurance Company (SCI) 20702

INSURED

Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling, LLC
3277 White Mountain Highway
North Conway, NH, 03860

INSURERB Valley Forge-Insurance Company 20508

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

aCSU
'MSD

?U5??
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
{MM/DO/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
<MM<00/YYYY1 LIMITS

IN5R

JJB.

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

D98348153 11/16/2022 11/16/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE

tIAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occuffBoce)

MED EXP (Any one paraon)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

CHlocX POLICY
□ PRO

JECT

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

$  1,000,000
$  1,000,000

$ 5,000
included

2,000,000

$ 2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO •

COMBINED SINGLE.LIMIT
(Ea acddanO
BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS
WORKERSCOMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY y, ̂
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTfVE j j
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUOEO? N
(Mandatory In NH) ' ' '
l( yea. descrtpe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

7012552621 11/23/2022 11/23/2023 Y PER^ I STATUTE
OTH-
ER

HI A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $  1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarlis Schedula, may be attached If more apace it required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

S/afe of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH. 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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{| HnR23^23 3--i£ RGV

1^ A. Weiver

InleHci Comnissiooer

Kftija S. Fox
Director

STATF OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

WVmON FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fix: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nli.80v

March 15. 2023

13

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into contracts with the Contractors listed below in an amount not to exceed $275,806 to
provide behavioral-based intervention. Contingency Management programming, for individuals
with a diagnosed Opioid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder, with the option to renew for up to four (4)
additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through September 29, 2023.
100% Federal Funds.

Contractor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Contract Amount

Blue Heron Neurofeedback and
Counseling, LLC

362670 Statewide $152,251

Community Council of Nashua. N.H.

d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

154112-

8001
Statewide $54,005

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
275119-

8001
Statewide $69,550

Total; $275,806

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are
anticipated to be available for State Fiscal Year 2024. with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to implement evidence- and behavioral-based intervention
programs, known as a Contingency Management. Contingency Management Programs have
been shown to be effective in reducing cravings, non-prescribed drug use, and risky behaviors,
while increasing treatment attendance and prescribed medication adherence; for individuals with
a clinically diagnosed Stimulant or Opipid Use Disorder.

Services identified in these agreements will be provided in conjunction with existing
evidence-based outpatient and intensive-outpatient substance use disorder treatment services,

The Department of Htallh and Human Services'Mitsion is to join communities and families
in providing opporiunilies for eilizens to achieve Ixeallh and independence.
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allowing NH to expand and increase accessibility to, and foster engagement with, treatment
programming. Contingency Management Programming offers enhancements that allow clinicians
to customize and individualize treatment goals and assist individuals to identify and modify their
behaviors, as related to their substance use. with the goal of achieving and sustaining recovery

Approximately 170 individuals will be served, across all three (3) Contractors, through
September 29. 2023.

Individuals participating in Contingency Management Programming will receive positive
reinforcement for achieving Identified treatment goals including; attendance at treatment
sessions, adherence to prescrit)ed medications for Opioid Use Disorder and/or other health
corwlitions. as applicable, and for evidence of positive behavioral change through the provision of
stimulant- and/or opioid-negative urine specimens. Clinicians will address ambivalence and
discuss and problem solve barriers to program attendance and participation with individuals who
do not achieve identified treatment goals. Clinicians will offer support and encouragement to
continue taking positive steps toward, and engaging in. their recovery efforts and will assist
individuals in connecting with community-based services to support their treatment and recovery
efforts, as needed.

The Department will monitor services through regularly scheduled meetings and the
review of monthly aggregate and de-identified data and aftercare survey reports to ensure project
deliverables and outcomes are being met.

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from December 6,
2022 through January 9, 2023. The Department received four (4) responses that were reviewed,
and scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request Individuals with stimulant
andfor opioid use disorder will not have access to this supplementary and powerful, evidence-
based intervention which may result in lower treatment retention and engagement rates,
decreased abstinence, and a decline in overall recovery experiences.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Numt>er CFDA 93.768, FAIN H79TI0B3326

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-«S.«2-»20510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVC'S DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV.
BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SCR GRANT
100% F«d«ral Funds, _%Gtn«r«l Funds, .%Othar Funds (Nam« of Sourta) _ •

State Fbcel Year Class/Accouni Class Tide Job Number Current Amourtl
Increase

fOecreatel
Revised Amount

2023 074-500&8B Welfare Assbisnce 02057053 50.00 593.305.00 593.305.00

2024 074.50058® Welfare Assistance 92057053 50.00 558.946.00 558.948.00

Sub Total 50.00 5152.251.00 5152.251.00

State FHcal Year Class /Account Class Tida Job Number Currant Amount Increase Revised Amount

2021 074.500589 Welfare Assistar\ce 92057053 50.00 S36 094.00 836.(»4.t>U

2024 074-500589 Weiiare Assistance 92057053 50.00 517.911.00 SW,911.00

Sub Total 50.00 S54 005.00 554.005.00

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount
Inereese

(Dec/easel
Revised Amount

2023 074-500589 Welfare Asshlance 920S70S3 50.00 543.489.00 543.469.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057053 50.00 526.081.00 526.081.00

Sub Total 50.00 589.550.00 589.550.00

OvtrsD ToUl) >0.00| S275.806.00| S27S.606.00

Covernor >nd Council Letter Atischmem

financial Detail

Paie 1 oli

r
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID U RFP-2023-DBHWEFFeC

I
Project Title Effective'Practices for the Treatmoht of .Oplold and.Stimulant Use Disorders

/

Maximum

Points

Available

Blue Heron.

Neurofeedback

& Counseling

Community

Council of

Nashua dba

(greater Nashua
Mental Health

Easterseals of

NH Farnum.

Hope'on Haven
Hill •

Technical.

Development Plan (Q'1) '  50 45 45 24 48

Implementation Pla'n (02)' 50 45 45 20 48

Engagement & Satisfaction (03) ■  30 12 27 14 28 .

Aftercare Survey (04) 20 . 10 15 8 15

Staffing Plan (05)' .20 * 18 17 5 18

Subtotal • Technical 170 130 149 /71 157

Cost

Budget Sheet (Appendix E) "  70 ' 49 60 21 60

Program Staff List (Appendix F) '  30- . 9 21 9 22

Subtotal - Cost 100 58 ' 81 30 82

TOTAL POINTS 270 188 230 101 239

I  TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST | $152.251 $57,344 $103,087

Reviewer Name Title

. \
' fAmanda Spreeman

bl
'iMelissa Girard

SOR Contracls & Program Mngr <

iSOR Finance Manager

^ Kassandra Martin" iSOR Data Analyst

$69,550
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)
Subject: RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-01
Effective Prflctlces for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders

Notice: This agreement and all ofits attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly idcntined to the agency and agreed'to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Conlractor Name

Blue Heron Ncurofcedback and Counseling, LLC

1.4 Contractor Address

3277 White Mountain Hwy, North Conway, NH 03860

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-356-6400

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-920510-

70400000-074-500589

1.7 Completion Date

9/29/2023

r.8 Price Limitation

5152,251

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert \V. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.I I Contractor Signature 3/20/2023

UdM

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Stacie i.eclerc

Owner

1.13 State Agency Signature 3/20/2023

1
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja S. FOX

Director

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On;

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

On;3/../20.3 :

1.17 Approvar5'^Vtj6^ernor and Executive Council, (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date;

Page 1 of4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, ihc
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated

• herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hefeundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required. In which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. -
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
conlrar>', all obligations of the State hcrcundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcreundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminate.^ or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT D, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
.performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Sciviccs, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guideliites as the
State or the United State.s i.ssuc to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply wilh all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees lo permit the State or United Stales
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
nil personnel engaged In the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aficr the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
•perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Stale employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the Interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of4
Contractor Initials
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Date 3/20/2023
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hercundcr ("Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule; .

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcrcundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, cfTcctive two (2) days af)cr giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such time as the Slate
dctermines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set ofT against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights, with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason .other than (he completion of the Serx-iccs, the
Contractor shall, al the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes;
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All daia and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this, Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agrccincni for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means' (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, logeiher wiih its affiliates, becomes the
direct or Indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

.  12.2 None of the Scr\'iccs shall be subcontracted'by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which It is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless othcrwi.se exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
oftlccrs and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or properly damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its olTiccrs or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omisftrotPJof the

of4
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless,or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against alt claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in' amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State ■
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and-
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
idcntiftcd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrtificate(s) of
insurance for.all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or hiis or her successor, cenificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the c.xpiraiion date of each
insurance policy. The certificate{s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is incompliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("lyorkers'
Conipensalion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with

activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any. applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Scrs'ices under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only afier approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hamp.shirc, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P07 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purpo.ses only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthc provisionsofthis
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect (o the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible'to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability .Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State, of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

RFP-2023-D8H-0&-EFFEC-01 A-1.2 Contractor Initials

Blue Heron Nourofoodback and Counsoling, LLC Page 1 of 1 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must develop and implement a behavioral-based intervention
Contingency Management Program (CMP) for individuals receiving outpatient
treatment for Opioid Use Disorder (QUO) or Stimulant Use Disorders (StimUD).

1.2. The Contractor must ensure the CMP is available statewide, to individuals
who:

1.2.1. Are residents of or are experiencing homelessness in NH;

1.2.2. Are aged 18 and older; and

1.2.3. Meet the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth
Edition (DSM-5) criteria for an Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and/or
Stimulant Use Disorder (SlimUD) as determined by a:

1.2.3.1. Licensed counselor; or

1.2.3.2. An unlicensed counselor who:

1.2.3.2.1. Is under the supervision of a licensed counselor;
or

1.2.3.2.2. Is working toward licensure; and

1.2.3.2.3.. Has completed the required coursework for
licensure, as required by:

1.2.3.2.3.1. NH Board of Alcohol and Other

Drug Use Providers;

1.2.3.2.3.2. NH Board of Mental , Health
Practice; or

1.2.3.2.3.3. NH Board of Psychology.

1.3., The Contractor ensure the Contingency Management Program (CMP) provides
positive reinforcement for evidence of desired behavioral change to individuals
receiving outpatient treatment for OUD and/or StimUD. The Contractor must
ensure CMP services:

1.3.1. Are provided in conjunction with existing evidence-based Intensive
Outpatient (lOP) and Outpatient (OP) levels of care;

1.3.2. Are based on strengths of the individual;

1.3.3. Are based on evidence of , the individual's specific, defined, and
positive behavioral change;

1.3.4. Address the individual's ambivalence about decreasing substance
use;. ,
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1.3.5. Create the opportunity to establish positive expectations;

1.3.6. Allow the individual to have power in decision making regarding their
treatment; and

1.3.7. Assist the individual to modify their behaviors to achieve and sustain
recovery.

1.4.. The Contractor must provide the Department with a Program Summary for
review and approval within 10 days of the contract effective date. The
Contractor must ensure the Summary clearly outlines the proposed CMP
including, but not limited to:

1.4.1. Program structure and policies.

1.4.2. A matrix of available incentives and associated target behaviors for
each. The Contractor must ensure incentives:

1.4.2.1.. Are valuable and.desirable to the Participant;

1.4.2.2. Are awarded to the Participant at time of targeted behavior
achievement;

1.4.2.3. Increase in value weekly as the Participant demonstrates
consistency in achieving the targeted behavior;

1.4.2.4.' Do not exceed a value of $15 per incentive, per Participant;
and

1.4.2.5. Do not exceed a total value of $75 per Participant,"per year.

1.4.3. Frequency for incentive award and distribution that ensures program
participants have multiple opportunities throughout the course of their
treatment to receive incentives.

1.4.4. Internal process for tracking incentive award and distribution.

1.5. The Contractor must provide individuals who meet "the criteria, described in
Section 1.2, with detailed program information and offer them the opportunity
to participate in the program. The Contractor must ensure CMP information
includes, but is not limited to:

1.5.1. Program overview including, but not limited.to:

1.5.1.1. Clear and detailed expectations of the targeted behavior(s).

1.5.1.2. How the targeted behavior{s) is/are fmeasured.

1.5.1.3. How incentives are earned and distributed.

1.5.1.4. Duration of program.

1.5.2. Program structure and policies including but not limited to:

1.5.2.1. Enrollment. >—ds
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1.5.2.2. Data collection.

1.5:2.3. Surveys.

1.5.2.4. Discharge.

1.6. The Contractor must ensure all individuals who choose to participate in the
CMP (herein after referred to as Participants), and their guardian if applicable,
receive, review, and sign ah informed consent prior to program participation.
The Contractor must ensure informed consent includes, but Is not limited to:

1.6.1. Risks and benefits of participation.

1.6.2. The notice of privacy practices shall be provided to the Department
upon request:

1.6.3. Notice of ability to rescind consent at any time.

1.7. The Contractor must ensure the signed informed consent form is kept in the
Participant's CMP record.

1.8. The Contractor must ensure eligible individuals who decline to participate in
the CMP:

1.8.1. Will not be denied any treatment services for which they are eligible;
and

1.8.2. Will be offered the opportunity to enroll-during their next scheduled
SUD treatment services appointment.

1.9. The Contractor must ensure Participants who are discharged from the CMP
are given the opportunity to reapply for admission to the program.

1.10. The Contractor must work with program Participants to develop a minimum of
two (2) CMP-related treatment goals. The Contractor must ensure the CMP
treatment goals are:

1.10.1. Unique to, and developed in collaboration with, the individual;

1.10.2. Address the individual's:

1.10.2.1. Participation in, commitment to, and completion of the
program and additional treatment modalities;

1.10.2.2. Strengths;

1.10.2.3. Ambivalence and inconsistencies regarding . StimUD
treatment;

1.10.2.4. Negative behavior patterns; and

1.10.2.5. Abstinence from stimulant use;

1.10.3. Specific, Measureable, Attainable, Relevant and Timely (SMART)
Goals.
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,1.11. The Gontractor must ensure CMP-associated treatment plans are updated
every.30 days with SMART Goals. '

1.12. The Contractor must ensure the CMP allows Participants to be enrolled for up
to a total of 12 weeks.

1.13. The Contractor must meet with Participants weekly, for CMP check-in. During
weekly CMP check-in, the Contractor must:

1.13.1. Update the Participant on the number of weeks they have participated
in the program and the number of weeks remaining:

1.13.2. If the Participant has achieved the targeted behavior{s), the Contractor
must provide the Participant with:

1.13.2.T. Positive reinforcement for the behavior(s); and ■

1.13.2.2. The corresponding eamed incentive.

1.13.3. If the Participant has not achieved the targeted behavior(s), the
Contractor must:

1.13^3.1. Discuss and problem solve any barriers to program
attendance or participation.

1.13.3.2. Offer support and encouragement to take positive steps and
continue to engage in their recovery efforts.

1.13.3.3. Assist the Participant connecting with community-based
services to support treatment and recovery as applicable.

1.14. The Contractor must implement the CMP in two- (2-) week intervals as follows:

1.14.1. Weeks one (1) and two (2): CMP participants receive a $10 gift card
on the second Friday upon;

1.14.1.1. Verified attendance at all scheduled appointments; and

1.14.1.2. Verified urinalysis testing is negative for Opioids and
Stimulants.

1.14.2. Weeks three (3) and four (4);

1.14.2.1. CMP participants receive a $10 gift card on the fourth Friday
upon: ■

1.14.2.1.1. Verified attendance at all scheduled ,

appointments; and

,1.14.2.1.2. Verified urinalysis testing is negative for
Opioids and Stimulants.

1.14.2.2. Participants who complete a CMP-related goal as identified
in their treatment plan; in addition to the above, will receive

08
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an additional $5 added to their gift card, resulting in a gift
card totaling $15.

1.14.3. Weeks five (5) through 12: Remaining intervals repeat as detailed
above with remaining gift card distribution occurring at weeks six (6),
eight (8), 1,0, and 12, when earned.

1.15. The Contractor must ensure earned incentives are awarded to Participants at
- the time of targeted behavior(s) achievement.

1.16. The Contractor must ensure Participant records related to the CMP are
recorded and maintained separate from the Participant's clinical outpatient
record.

1.17. The Contractor must ensure the CMP is implemented to fidelity. The Contractor
must:

1.17.1. Consult with the Department on adaptations, as needed, to meet the
needs of the individuals served.

1.17.2.' Ensure adaptations to the CMP are not implemented prior to or
without Department approval.

1.18. The Contractor must conduct continuous quality improvement to determine
needs or modifications.

1.19. The Contractor must implement the CMP no later than 90 days after the
contract effective date.

1.20. The Contractor must comply with all current and future federal and state laws,
rules, and regulations, regarding this scope of work.

1.21. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management and improve results.

1.22. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department, on a monthly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.23. Program Marketing

1.23.1. The Contractor must develop marketing materials to be used for.
"program outreach. The Contractor must ensure CMP marketing*
' materials:

1.23.1.1. Educate individuals receiving services and service providers
about the CMP including, but not limited to:

1.23.1.1.1. Benefits and successes of using this approach
in conjunction with other evidence-based
treatment modalities;

1.23.1.1.2. Program overview. r—I
SiSI
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1.23.2. The Contractor must ensure all CMP-related marketing materials are
submitted to the Department for review and approval prior to
distribution of materials

1.24. CMP Aftercare Surveys

1.24.1. The Contractor must administer CMP Aftercare Surveys, as provided
by the Departrnent, to each Participant upon discharge from the CMP,
to assess overall program experience, satisfaction, and outcomes.

1.24.2. The Contractor must utilize a digital survey software, e.g. Survey
Monkey or equivalent, to administer the survey, collect participant
responses, and analyze survey results. The Contractor must ensure
surveys:

1.24.2.1. Allow for only anonymous responses, so participants feel
safe in giving honest feedback;

1.24.2.2. Shall not elicit a response that would collect personally
■  identifiable, meaning information that would allow for the
constructive identification of any individual and that there is
no reasonable basis to believe the data could be used, alone
or In combination with, other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an
individual who is a subject of the information, protected
health. SUD, or other state or federally regulated
information;

1.24.2.3. Are reviewed and approved by the Department prior to
distribution; and

1.24.2.4. Are reviewed and utilized for program enhancement and
improvement.

1.24.3. The Contractor must ensure survey results data are aggregate and de-
identified.

1.24.4. The Contractor must share aggregate, non-identifiable survey results
with the Department as requested.

1.25. Data Entry Requirements

1.25.1. The. Contractor must provide the Department with aggregate, non-
identifiable client data only. The Contractor must ensure:

1.25.1.1. Aggregate and de-identified data excludes information that
would allow for the constructive identification of any
individual, meaning that there is no reasonable basis to
believe that the data could be used, alone or in combination
with other reasonably available information, by an
anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is ,

•'S1/
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of the information;

1.25.1.2. Regulated or identifiable data is not handled or stored on
behalf of the Department; and

1.25.1.3. Personally identifiable client information, protected health
information, SUD, or other state or federally regulated
information is not shared with the Department verbally,
digitally, or in. hard copy in association with this contract.

1.25.2. The Contractor must Work with the Department's Contractor,
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care Inc. (AFMC), to obtain
authorization to enter CMP data into AFMC's REDCap system, which
will be used by AFMC to provide aggregate' reporting to the
Department.

1.25.3. The Contractor must enter aggregate, non-identifiable CMP data into
the AFMC system on a monthly basis. The Contractor must ensure
data entered includes:

1.25.3.1. Demographics;

1.25.3.2. Number of individuals served;

1.25.3.3. Number of CMP sessions attended per individual;

1.25.3.4. Number of individuals who completed the CMP;

1.25.3.5. Number of individuals who did not complete the CMP and
reason{s) for non-completion;

1.25.3.6. Type, number, and cost of gift cards provided, per individual;
and

1.25.3.7. Other CMP data as determined and requested by the
Department.

1.26. ReporlinQ

1.26.1. The Contractor must submit monthly reports to the Department, in a
■ format approved by the Department. The Contractor must ensure
monthly CMP reports include only aggregate and non-identifiable data
including:

1.26.1.1. Demographics;

1.26.1.2. Number of individuals served;

1.26.1.3. Number of sessions individuals attended;

1.26.1.4. Number of individuals completing the CMP;

1.26.1.5. Number of individuals not completing the CMP and
reason(s) non-completion; ^d9
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1.26.1.6. Number and cost of incentives provided, per individual; and

1.26.1.7. Other CMP data as determined and requested by the
Department.

1.26.2. The Contractor must submit monthly CMP Participant Survey results
to the Department, in a format approved by the Department. The
Contractor must ensure survey results data Is aggregate and non-
identifiable.

1.26.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other data and metrics tp
the Department in a format specified by the Department.

1.27. Staffing

1.27.1. The Contractor and its program staff must attend the CMP trairiing,
provided by the Department's designated trainer, prior to CMP
implementation.

1.27.2. The Contractor must recruit and maintain sufficient staff assigned to
the CMP necessary to perform and carry out all of the functions,
requirements, roles and duties as proposed. The Contractor must
ensure CMP staff are trained:

1.27.2.1. On the program model'prior to working in the program;

1.27.2.2. To safeguard the confidentiality, privacy, and information
security of the participant information; and

1.27.2.3. Any access to Department databases shall require
completion of Department information security training as
required.

1.27.3. The Contractor must provide a CMP Administrative Coordinator to
monitor day-to-day program tasks. The Contractor" must ensure CMP
Administrative Coordinator tasks include, but are nol limited to:

1.27.3.1. Weekly reviews of Participant records to ensure the
following information is documented:

1.27.3.1.1. Urinalysis lest results, if applicable, and
include test date and positive or negative
result;

1.27.3.1.2. Attendance;

1.27.3.1.3. Treatment plan goal achievement,- if
applicable; and

1.27.3.1.4. Total number and cash value of incentives

received.
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1.27.3.2. Assisting Participants with obtaining incentives, as
" applicable.

1.28. Performance Measures

1.28.1. The Contractor must provide key data in a format and at a frequency
specified by the Department for the following performance measures:

1.28.1.1. 95% of participants complete the-required sessions in the"
CMP;

1.28.1.2. 95% of participant assessments demonstrate the treatment
plan was based oh the participants strengths and identified
motivational incentives; and

1.28.1.3.90% of participants decreased to stopped stimulant use
after. 90 days of completion of the program as indicated
through aftercare survey results

1.28.2. The Department may include other performance measures in the
resulting contract(s).

1.29. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

1.29.T. The Contractor must establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with the Doorways "in compliance with all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive
payments for services funded with SOR resources.

1.29.2. The Contractor must ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doonways
are:

1.29.2.1. Completed and documented in the individual's file; and

1.29.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as needed for
payment of invoices for services provided through SOR-
funded initiatives.

1.29.3. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services, rendered ■
from SOR funds, have a documented history or current diagnoses of
Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) or Stimulant Use Disorders (StimUD) or
are at risk for such.

■1.29.4. The Contractor must coordinate, completion of Government
Performance Results Act (GPRA) initial interview and associated
follow-ups at six (6) months and discharge for individuals referenced
previously.

1.29.5. The Contractor must ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to
purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or for providing treatment
using marijuana. The Contractor must ensure:
1.29.5.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of
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SlimUD.

1.29.5.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or
organization that provides or permits marijuana use for the
purposes of treating substance use or mental health
disorders.

1.29.5.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and
Memorandums of Understanding that receive SOR funding.

1.29.6. The Contractor must ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals

utilizing SOR funding.

1.29.7. If the Contractor intends to distribute Fentanyl test strips, the selected
Applicant(s) must provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the
Department for approval prior to implementation. The selected
Applicant(s) must ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited
to:

1.29.7.1. Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips:

1.29.7.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

1.29.7.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

1.29.8. The Contractor must provide services to eligible individuals who:

1.29.8.1. Receive Medication Assisted Treatment'(MAT) services
from other providers, including the individual's primary care
provider;

1.29.8.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

1.29.8.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as
prescribed regardless of the class of medication.

1.29.9. The Contractor must ensure individuals who refuse to consent to

information sharing with the Doorways do not receive services utilizing
SOR funding.

1.29.10.The Contractor must ensure individuals who rescind consent to

information sharing with the Doorway do not receive any additional
services utilizing SOR funding..

1.29.11. The Contractor niust collaborate with the Department and other SOR
funded Contractors, as requested and directed by the Department, to
improve GPRA collection.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through H and J, which are
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms
S6
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3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. . The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders' may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deafer have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from "the Department befpre printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain .copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to;

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines."

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations
Si
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3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal; state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions .of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation," all ledgers, books, records, and original'
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes ^^dit,
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examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

RFP.2023-DBH^Da.EFFeC-O1 B-2.0

Blue Heron Neurofeedbecfc end Counseling, LLC Page 13 of 13
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, from the State Opioid Response (SCR) I! Grant,
as awarded on August 29, 2022, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, CFDA 93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1."" The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

4. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services rendered from SOR
funds have a documented history or. current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder
or Stimulant Use Disorder.

5. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved tine items, as specified in Exhibit C-1, SFY 2023 Budget and

• Exhibit C-2, SFY 2024 Budget.

6. The Contractor must seek payment for services, as follows:

6.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other
payor sources.

6.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare, if applicatile.

6.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as
follows:

6.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care
Organization (MCG), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance

•  with its contract with the MCG.

■ 6.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for
services on the Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

6.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with either
the Contractor's Sliding Fee Scale Program or the Sliding Fee Scale
provided by the Department.

6.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale
remains unpaid, charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

7. The Contractor must submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation
in a form satisfactory to the State by. the fifteenth (15th) working dav^jthe

R
RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-01 C-2.0 Conlraclor Inilials >

3/20/2023

Blu© Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling. LLC Page 1 of 4 Dale



uocu5>ign tnveiope lu; Ai-rAbiM-zAbo^b/b-ABoxjoyutiiiUOMutr

OocuSign Envelope 10: 8B5AFA2A-A8AO-4AC8-8460-D£6D3dCC(H89

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders

EXHIBIT C

following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
.  . ^ expenses incurred in the prior month.

8. The Contractor must ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to
the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices must not include any client
protected health information or personally identifiable information and shall be

.  net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this
agreement. The Contractor must ensure:

8.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

8.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

8.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees
worked for wages reported .under this contract.

8.1:2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal
awards for salaries and wages must be based on
records that accurately reflect the work performed.

8.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are
available from the Department upon request.

8.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

8.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

8.1.3.1.1. ■ Amounts belonging to other programs.

8.1.3.1.2. Amounts.prior to effective date of contract .

8.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

8.1.3.1.4. Food or water.

8.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe;
or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana.

8.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

8.1.3.1.7. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for
.  clients.

8.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

8.1.5. Cost center reports.

8.1.6. Profit and loss report.

8.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance

Advices do not need to be supplied with the invoice, but should
be retained to be available upon request.

8.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying alloc^on or
offset based on third party revenue received.

b(/
RFP-2023-OBH-0S-EFFEC-01 C-2,0 Coolractor Initials
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EXHIBIT C

8.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue
and other financial information as requested by the Department.

8.2. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation.
and is emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesbdas(Q)dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services-
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

9. The Contractor Is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with
further restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

10. The Contractor agrees that invoices submitted late may be subject to non
payment.

11. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to appro>?al of the submitted Invoice.

12. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department .no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

13. Notwithstanding Paragfaph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive. Council, if needed and
justified.

14. Audits

14.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

.14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of SV.OOO.OOO or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Auditperformed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (p^)
RFP.2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-01 C-2.0 Contractor (nilials ̂
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EXHIBIT C

dhhs.act(S)dhhs.nh.QOv within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements

-■ of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
awards.

14.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
anriual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations .of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

SI
RFP-2023-D8H-08-eFFEC-01 C-2.0 Contraclor Initials
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SFY23 Budget
RFP-2023-DBH^^FFCC-Ol

Now Hampshlro Oopsrtmoni of Hoallh and Human Services

Coniraclor Name; Biue Hvon NBifofoodb9Ck & Ccunsoling. LLC

Bud^ol for: Contingency ManagBtneni Progrsm

Budget Period 2/1/2023-6/3(y2023

Indirect Cost Rato (if appllcablo) 6.67%

Uno item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages S79.296

2. Fringe Benefits S297

3. Consullants $0
-

d, Equipment

indirect cost rate cannot be applied to egulpment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and Appendix iV to 2 CFR 200.

S336

5.(a] Supplies • Educational CM Rewards $5,100

5.(b} Supplies • Lab •$p

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy SO

S.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e} Supplies Office S448

.

8. Travel $170

7, Software $1,350

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications $1,294

8. (b) Othw • Education and Training $322

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below}

Occupancy $2,493

Tokiphono i Intomot $390

Posteoe $66

.  LIconso $77

LMtod English Sonhces $244

Insurance $324

9. Subcontractors/Agreements $1,100

•

,  Total Direct Costs •  $87,469

Total Indirect Costs $5,836

TOTAL .  . $93,305

g
3/20/202} ,

Page2ot2
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SFY24 Budget

New Hampehlro Oopartment of Hoelth and Human Sorvfcos

Contractor Name: Blue Horvn Neun3/M^l>ack i Couoae//ng, U.C

Budoet Reouost for: Coniingoncy Manaqemeni PfCQfam

Budaet Period 7/l/2023'9/29/2O23

■  Indirect Cost Rate (if appficablo) 6.30%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salo'y& Wages S5D.644

2. Fringe BeneTils $178

3. Consutienis SO

•

4. Equipmenl $201

5.(8) Supplies • Educattor^al CM Rftvards $3,060

5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies-Medical $0

5.(0) Supplies Office $267

•'

6. Travel $102

7. Software $810

8. (a) Other - Madcetino/ Communications $776

8. (b) Other • Education and Training $193

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)
Occupancy $1,495

Tofophone 6 imemoi $234

PoslBpe $40

License $46

Lkniied English Services $146

Insurance $194

•

9. SubcontraciorsfAgreemonts $660

Total Direct Costs $55,446

Total Indirect Costs $3,500

TOTAL $58,948

J/20/2023

Page 2 of 2
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0:41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute (he following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTfVIENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS . •

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace"Act of.1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 at seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and-published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
'21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each'grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of .fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the,certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after,receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from'an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice^ including posllion title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ft"
Exhibit 0 - Centfic^iion regarbirtg Omg Free Vendor Initials

Workplace Requirements 3/20/2023
CLWWHS/t 10713 Page 1 of 2 Date
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification humber(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any ernployee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
.  . amended; or -

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or.
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:.

• 1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implernentalion of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2.1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

3/20/2023

Vendor Name; Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling

Oocu5lQn»d by:

l/Jxn
Dale Nafnei'^S^^^i^fi" Led ere

owner

.— 05

SL '
Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Inillais^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and furtheragrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following CertiHcation:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program.covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A

•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to .
any person for innuencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-,
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying; in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require (hat the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a'material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: slue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling

^  DocuSigcxd by:

3/20/2023 I [julxrC
Date Leclerc

Title:
Owner

Exhibll E - Certlficalion Regarding Lobbying

3/20/2023
cxvDKHS/110713 Page 1 of 1 Dale

Vendor tnilials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding-Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an

• explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHMS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participarit learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended,.declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered, transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding De.barment, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification* is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and^^

.1. S(/
ExhiblJ F - Certification Reflarding Debannent. Suspension Conuactor Initiab^ ■■■ ■

And Other Responsibilily Matters 3/20/2023
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normaiiy possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default' '

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false staternents, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted.for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any. of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
■ certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling

-DocuSigntdby: '

3/20/2023

Date TJafff^Strei^-Leclerc
Title:

Owner

-OS

Si
Exhibit F - Certification RegardinQ Debarmenl, Suspension Contractor Initials^

And Other Responsibility Matters 3/20/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating.-either In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan:

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or natjona! origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- ttie Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age. in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

/

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

faExhibit G
Conlraclor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of .
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wilt forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and -
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling

Do<vSlo«>«d by:>— oocv9iQt>^^ by:

3/20/2023 [ LuluX
5i^r I^^T^^Sire-Leclerc

Owner

%Exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONWENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
taw does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in" the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the.Pro-Children Act of 1994.

3/20/2023

Date

Contractor Name: Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling

— bocuSlon*^ try;

Oukn
-N"me:"^t§rffi-Lec1erc ^

Owner

CU/OHHS/nOriS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency,Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater Uian $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date.of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Corhpensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subavk^rd or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source '
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity • .
8. Principle place of performance _
9. Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendmenMs made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Blue Heron Neurofeedback and Counseling

— DocuSipncd by;

3/20/2023

•Diti ^^ Name^si^1^"^-eclerc
Title: owner

Exblblt J - Certificallon Regarding the Federal Funding Contrador InlUab
Si

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) CompUano© 3/20/2023
cu^HMsntoria Page 1 of 2 Dale _______
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1,3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  . 1218422S4
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is; .

2. In your business or organization's preceding cornpleled fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, sul>contracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o{d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO , YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:.

Amount:

Amount:.

Name:-..

Name:.

Amount:

Amount:,.

Amount:

CUrtiNHS/l 10713

Ejdilbll J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Acoounlabilrty And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Community Council of Nashua, N.H. d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health
("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 12, 2023 (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, Subsection 1.1, the Contract may be amended upon.written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$122,341

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services. Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.29, State Opioid
Response (SOR) Grant Standards, to read:

1:29. State ODiold Response fSORI Grant Standards

1.29.1. The Contractor must establish formal information sharing and referral agreements
with the Doorways in compliance with all applicable confidentiality laws, including
42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive payments for services funded with SOR.
resources.

1.29.2 The Contractor must ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doonways are:

1.29.2.1. Completed and documented in the individual's file; and

1.29.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as needed for payment of
invoices for services provided through SOR-funded initiatives.

1.29.3. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SOR
funds, have a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder or
Stimulant Use Disorders (OUD/StimUD) or are at risk for such.

1.29.4. The Contractor must coordinate completion of Government Performance Results
Act (GPRA) initial interview and associated' follow-ups at six (6) months and
discharge for individuals referenced previously.

- 1.29.5. The Contractor must submit a detailed plan within thirty (30) days of contract
effective date for ensuring GPRA completion for all clients receiving SOR funding.

1.29.6. The Contractor must ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase,
prescribe, or provide cannabis or for providing treatment using cannabis. The
Contractor must ensure: >—ds

Community Council of Nashua, N.H. ClP
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials^

9/5/2023
RFP.2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-021-A01 Page 1 of 5 Date
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1.29.6.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of OUD/StimUD.

1.29.6.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating substance
use or mental health disorders.

1.29.6.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Memorandums of
Understanding that receive SOR funding.

1.29.7. The Contractor must ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals, utilizing SOR
funding.

1.29.8. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor must provide a test
strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation. The
Contractor must ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:

1.29.8.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

1.29.8.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

1.29.8.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

1.29.9. The Contractor must provide services as referenced to eligible individuals who:

1.29.9.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers, including the individual's
primary care provider;

1.29.9.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

1.29.9.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed
regardless of the class of medication.

1.29.10. The Contractor must ensure individuals who refuse to consent to information
sharing with the Doonways do not receive services utilizing SOR funding.

1.29.11. The Contractor must ensure individuals who rescind consent to information sharing
with the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR funding.

1.29.12. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded
Contractors, as requested and directed by the Department, to improve GPRA
collection.

1.29.13. The Contractor must comply with all. appropriate Department, State of NH,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), and
other Federal terms, conditions, and requirements, and as amended, and must
collaborate with the Department to understand the aforesaid.

.4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

.  1. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response (SOR) II
Grant, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assisted Listing Number (ALN) 93.788', as
awarded on:

1.1. 08/29/2022, FAIN H79TI083326; and

1.2. 09/30/2023, FAIN TBD, as anticipated pending receipt of the SAMHSA Notice of Award

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 5, to read:

5. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, SFY 2023 Budget through Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1,^SFoy 2025

Community Council of Nashua, N.H. [UP
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials^

9/5/2023
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Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 8, Subsection 8.1, Paragraph 8.1.3, Subparagraph
8.1.3.1, by adding Parts 8.1.3.1.8 through 8.1.3.1.10, as follows:

8.1.3.1.8. Promotional items including, but not limited to, clothing and commemorative items
with added logos for distribution to clients and the community including, but not limited
to, pens, mugs/cups, folders/folios, lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR
75.421(e)(3).

8.1.3.1.9. Direct payments to individuals to enter treatment or continue to participate in
prevention or treatment services. See 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b.

8.1.3.1.10. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic Injection of any illegal drug.

7. Add Exhibit C-3, Amendment #1, SPY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1, SPY 2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Community Council of Nashua, N.H.
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

9/5/2023
RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-021-A01 Page 3 of 5 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective September 29, 2023, or upon Governor and Council approval,
whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/6/2023

Date

r—OocuSigrMd by:
S. fo*

eBiBasawe^i.,-^—=—

Name: Katja s. fox

Title; Director

9/5/2023

Date

Community Council of NH,
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

DoeuSigntd by:

^ L whitaker, Psyo

Title: president and CEO

Community Council of Nashua NH
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02.A01

A-S-1.2

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

>1^—DocuSlofl'd •

9/6/2023

Date . Name: cuarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Council of Nashua NH A-S-1.2
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02-A01 Page 5 of 5
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RFP-202a-OBH^8-EFFEC-02-A01 Exhibit C-3. Amendment #1

SFY2024 Budget

NewHamps

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

hire Department of Health and Human Services

Community Council of Nashua, NH. d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

Contingency Management Program

September 30. 2023 through June 30, 2024

6%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
Budget Narrative

Explain specific line item costs
included end their direct relationshio

1. Salary & Wages $32,755

2. Fringe Benefits $9,388

3. Consultants

4. Equipment

5.(3) Supplies • Educational CM Rewards

5.(b) Supplies-Lab $1,950 Point of Care- Urine Testing Cups

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $395
Medical Gloves arvl test cup disposal

materials

S.(e) Supplies Office $350

Certificates for program completion,

Pens, fishbowl for Raffle, scissors,

paper,foiders, envelops, tape, etc.

6. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications $400
Flyers. Brochures. Posters

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq

Contigency Incentives $3,000

Funding for gift cards for contigency
incentives (40 clients calculated with
$75 manmum earnings) plus fees for

bulk order or activation fees

CSQ-8 Client Satisfaction Questionare $100

Purchase of CSQ-8 Ouestionaires to

be distributed electronically to program
participants

Postage $150
For Marketing Material, outreach to

referral sources.

9. Subcontractors/Agreements

Total Direct Costs $48,488

Total Indirect Costs $2,784

TOTAL $51,252

aw

9/S/2023

Page 2 of 4
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RFP-2023-D8H-08-EFFEC-02-A01 E)tiibit C-4. Amendment #1

SFY2025 Budget

New Hampa

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

hire Department of Health and Human Services

Community Council of Nashua. NH. d/b/a Greafer Nashua Menial Health

Conf/ngency Management Program

Juty 1. 2024 through September 29. 2024

6%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
Budget Narrative

Explain specific line item costs
included and their direct relationshio

1. Salary & Wages. S11,270

2. Fringe Benefits $3,230

3. Consultants

4.' Equipment

5.(a) Supplies • Educational CM Rewards

S.(b) SupF^ies • Lab $486 Point of Care- Urine Testing Cups

5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $99
Medical Gloves and test cup disposal

materials

5.(e) Supplies Office $164

Certificates for program completion,

Pens, fishbowl for Raffle, scissors,

oaoer.folders. eoveloos. taw etr

6. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Mariteling/ Communications $100
Flyers. Brochures. Posters

8. (b) Other • Education and Training

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Contigency Incentives $750

Funding tor gift cards for contigency
incentives (10 clients calculated with
$75 maumum earnings) plus fees for

bulk order or activation fees

CSQS Client Satisfaction Questionare $25

Purchase of CSQ-8 Questionaires to

be distributed electronically to program
participahis

Postage $38
For Marketing Material, outreach to

referral sources.

9. Subcontractors/Agreements

Total Direct Costs $16,163

Total Indirect Costs $921

TOTAL $17,084

(W
9/5/2023

Page 4 of 4
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

i, David.M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE COM.MUNITY COUNCIL OF

NASHUA. N.H. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on December 24,

1923. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 630S0

Certificate Number: 0005752978

Urn

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.vcd

Ihe Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 7ih day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . James R. Jordan. Board Chair hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Community Council of Nashua, NH d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and held on
Sept 5 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Cvnthia L Whitaker. PsvD. President & Chief Executive Officer (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Community Council of Nashua. NH d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health to enter into
contracts or agreements with the.State (Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the date of
the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days
from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will
rely on this certificate; as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the pdsition(s) indicated and that
they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed
individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated
herein.

Dated: an

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: James R. Jordan

Title: Board Chair

Greater Nashua Mental Health

Rev. 03/24/20

Amendment #1 of the Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders contract (RFP-2023-

DBH-08-EFFEC-02) $68,336.
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, LLC
11 Concord Street

Nashua NH 03064

NAME^*^^ Kimberlv H. Gutekunst, GIG
F„v 603-882-2766 Twc. No):

kax(®eatonberube.com

INSURER(S)AFFOROING COVERAGE NAIC/f

INSURER A Scottsdale Insurance Go

INSURED C0MC03
The Community Council of Nashua NH, Inc
dba Greater Nashua Mental Health
100 West Pearl Street
Nashua NH 03060

INSURER B Concord General Mutual 20672

INSURERC Granite State Health Gare & Human Services Self In

INSURER 0

INSURERE

INSURERF

INSR

iJS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

5UBRADDL POLICY EPF POLICY EXP
LIMITS

TYPE OF INSURANCE IWSD

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

0CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

□POLICY
□ PRO

JECT LOC

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

RETENTIONS mnnn
WORKERSCOMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
0PFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDE07
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

YfN

□

Professional Liability
Claims Made
Retro Date: 11/12/1966

N/A

jfifm POLICY NUMBER

OPS158619810

20038992

UMS0028391

HCHS20220000591

OPS158619810

fMM/DD/YYYYI

11/12/2022

11/12/2022

11/12/2022

1/1/2023

11/12/2022

(MM/OD/YYYY>

11/12/2023

11/12/2023

11/12/2023

1/1/2024

11/12/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
TTAWA'GrrO'RERTED
PREMISES fEa occurrerKe)

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accldenU
BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accideni)

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

E.L, EACH ACCIDENT

E.L, DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

$2,000,000

$300,000

$ 5.000

$ 2,000,000

$2,000,000

$2,000.000

$1,000,000

$5,000,000.

$ 5.000.000

$1,000,000

E.L-DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Each Claim
Aggregate

$5,000,000
$5,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more Space Is required)
Workers Compensation coverage: NH; no excluded officers.

NH DHHS is listed as additional insured per written contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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GNIMiC=^ Greater Nashua

Mental Health

Mission Statement oF Greater Nashua Mental Health

Empowering people to lead Full and satisFying lives through eFFectlve

treatment and support.

Administrative Office (603) 889-6147

100 West Pearl Street, Nashua, NH 03060 "" www.gnmh.org
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1:^ BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors. •

The Community Council of Nashua, NH, Inc.
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Community Council of Nashua, NH,
Inc. d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health (the Organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional revenues and expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate^ that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a.whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in' the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

Moine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts ■ Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizono

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

The Community Council of Nashua, NH, Inc.
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

Page 2

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previousiy audited the Organization's 2021 financial statements and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 28, 2021. In
our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2021 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it
has been derived.

Manchester, New Hampshire
October 31, 2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: 260DC89A-7AD0^19C.A760-DD2B73C806C6

THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH, INC.
D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2022

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2021)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts and

contractuals of $222,078 in 2022 and $226,715 in 2021

Investments

Prepaid expenses
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related activities
Accrued vacation

Estimated third-party liability
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Undesignated
Board designated

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2022 2021

15,290,931 $11,248,237

1,356,320 1,868,512

1,990,726 2,145,270
253,732 282,051

3.117.476 2.798.099

22.009.185 $18,342,169

•  273,782 $  221,939
1,821,811 1,169.301

520,835 483,361

683,358 -

95.181 350.466

3.394.967 2.225.067

15,998,231 13,370,028

2.302.975 2.418.378

18,301,206 15,788,406

313.012 328.696

18.614.218 16.117.102

.  22.009.185 $18,342,169

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 260DC89A.7AD0-419C-A760-DD2B73C806C6

THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH, INC.
D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2022

(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2021)

2022

Revenues and support
Program service fees, net
New Hampshire Bureau of Behavioral

Health

Federal and state grants
Rental income

Contributions and support
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)
funding

Other

Total-revenues and support

Expenses
Program services
Children's and adolescents' services
Adult services

Older adult services

Deaf services

Substance abuse disorders

Medical services

Other programs

Total program services

General and administrative

Development

Total expenses

Income from operations

Other income (loss)
Investment return, annual appropriation
Investment return, net of fees and

annual appropriation
Realized and unrealized (losses) gains

on investments

Total other (loss) Income

Excess of revenues and support
and other income over

expenses and change in net
assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Total

2021

p  18,583,127 $  . $ 18,583,127 $ 18,020,296

4,018,116
927,473

7,817
154,903

-

4,018,116
927,473

7,817
154,903

3,390,523
871.173

6,943

137.705

389.089

-

389.089

2,071,084
1.165.403

24.080.525 24.080.525 25.663.127

2,794,767
5,752,634
590,749
489,789
797,363

1,790,913
3.154.994

-

2,794,767
5,752,634
590,749
489,789
797,363

1,790,913
3.154.994

2,133,451
5,080,510
561,822
384,316
678,873

1,642,608
2.044.300

15,371,209 - 15,371,209 12,525,880

6,034,152
46.961

- 6,034,152
46.961

5,673,236
33.390

21.452.322 21.452.322 18.232.506

2.628.203 2.628.203 7.430.621

45,003

25,094 3,590 28,684 (12,898)

(140.497i (19.274t (159.7711 303.297

ni5.4031 (15.6841 (131.0871 -335.402

2,512,800 (15,684) 2,497,116 7.766,023

15.788.406 328.696 16.117.102 8.351.079

S  18.301.206 $ 313.012 $ 18.614.218 $ 16.117.102

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-
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- Statement of Functional Revenues and Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Children's

and Substance

Adolescents' Adult Older Adult Deaf Abuse Medical Other Total General and
Services Services ' Services Services Disorders Services Programs Proorams ' Administrative Development Total

Revenues and support and other income
Programservicefees.net $ 4,486,775 $ 9,484,255 $ 1.663,659 5 671,241 5 314,292 $ 1,127,279 $ 834,235 $ 18,581,736 $ 1,391 S - $ 18,583,127
New Hampshire Bureau of Behavioral

Health 225,410 1,117,069 1,450 326,658 487,758 160 1,800,360 3,958,865 59,251 - 4,018,116
Federal and state grants 250,241 50,000 - - 1,000 • 626,232 927,473 - - 927,473
Rental Income • - - - - • 7,817 - 7,817
Contributions and support - 500 ' - - - - 41,443 41,943 1 112,959 154,903
Net Investment loss - - - - • • • (131,087) - (131,087)
Other i 373.425 . ; 1.000 : ; 374.425 14.664 ' ; 389;089

Total revenues and support and
other income (loss) 5 4.962.426- $11.025.249 $ 1.665.109 $ 997.899 $ 804.050 $ 1.127.439 $ 3.302.270 $ 23.884.442 $ 147.9631 S 112.959 $ 23.949.438.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-5-
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statement of Functional Revenues and Expenses (Concluded)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Total revenues and support and
other ifKome (loss)

Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Professional services

Staff development and recognition
Utilities

Occupancy
Supplies and equipment
Soft^re and technology
Travel arxf meals

Communications

Client support
Insurance

Dues and publications
Other

Depredation

Total expenses before allocation

General and administrative allocation

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Children's

and

Adolescents'

Services

Adult

Services

2,020,7&4

409,415

207,052

13,133

5,721

5

17,712
1,125

.  43,874

13,060

21,092

4,400

32.414

2,794,767

1.645.861

4.440.628

$  521.798

Older Adult

$ 4.962.426 $11.025.249 $

3,957,308

725,938

315,619

24,370

11,335

1,630

29,084

12,914

100

96,645

36,937

98,618

1,414

263

370,249

■  70.210

5,752,634

3.598.396

9.351.030

$ 1.674.219

Deaf

Substance

Abuse Medical Other

Services Services Disorders Services Proarams

1.665.109 S  997.899 $  804.050 S 1.127.439 $ 3.302.270

456,149 323,194 618,816 1,488,980 2,191,351

63,799 44,090 81,196 173,686 339,729

36,586 26,228 49,157 95,863 174,425

867 57,152 13,189 12,425 133,869

809 5,714 12,550 3,719 8,738

. . 94,620

. 2,214 3,085 3,353 105,644

. . . 600 4,959

15,285 18,310 2,370 - 10,663

4,753 4,687 2,501 862 32,826

8 14 2,000 - 3,128
. . . . 4,883
. 175 190 180 253

. . .  . . 903

12.493 8.011 12.309 11.245 49.003

590,749 489,789 797,363 1,790,913 3,154,994

478.589 224.605 334.840 f663.474i 457.784

1.069.338 714.394 1.132.203 i.127.439 3.612.778

i  595.771 $  283.505 S  f328.153) $ $  (310.5081

Total General and

Proarams Administrative Dftvelooment Total

.  23.884.442 $  (47.9631 S  112.959 $ 23.949.438

11,056,562 3,072,502 20,439 14,149,503

1,837,853 434,761 6,608 2,279,222

904,930 191,684 1,602 1,098,216

255,005 416,225 10,500 681,730

48,586 72,708 - 121,294

1,630 142,551 - 144.181

123,709 361,392 - 485,101

144,922 229,411 253 374,586

6,784 384,825 1,811 393,420

192,147 6,839 . 198,986

95,626 278,256 4,875 378,757

124,860 13,716 - 138,576

6,297 278,949 . 285,246

5,461 62,077 50 67,588

371,152 29,498 563 401,213

195.685 58.758 260 254.703

15,371,209 6,034,152 46,961 21,452,322

6.076.601 (6.082.115) 5.514 .

21.447.810 (47.9631 52.475 21.452.322

$  2.436.632 $. 60.484 $ 2.497.116

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-6-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 260DC89A-7AD0-419C-A760-DD2B73C806C6

THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH, INC.
D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2022

(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2021)

2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustrhents to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities

$ 2,497,116 $ 7,766,023

Depreciation
Net realized and unrealized losses (gains) on investments

Loss on disposal of assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related activities
Accrued vacation

Estimated third-party liability
Deferred revenue

RPR funding ^

254,703
159,771

512,192

28,319

68,755

652,510
37,474

683,358

(255,285)

264,510
(303,297)

155,387

685,302

(146,036)
(22,783)

(171,105)
22,818

(18,681)
345,514

(2.052.284)

Net cash provided by operating activities 4.638.913 6.525.368

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from the sale of investments

Purchase of property and equipment

(973,632)
968,405

(590.9921

(1,087,243)
1,062,635

(209.2961

Net cash used by investing activities (596.2191 (233.9041

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on notes payable -  - (1.384.2041

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,042,694 4,907,260

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11.248.237 6.340.977

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 15.290.931 $ 11.248.237

Supplemental disclosures of noncash flow activities
Acquisition of property and equipment included in

accounts payable and accrued expenses $  65.370 $ 82.282

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CPWIMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH, INC.
D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2021)

Organization

The Community Council of Nashua, NH, Inc. d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health (the Organization) is
a comprehensive community health center located in Nashua. New Hampshire. The Organization's
mission is to work with the community to meet the mental health needs of its residents by offering
evaluation, treatment, resource development, education and research. The Organization Is dedicated to
clinical excellence and advocacy with its Child and Adolescent, Adult Outpatient Services, Older Adult
Services, Deaf Services, Substance Abuse, Medical Services, and other programs.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP,
which require the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations irnposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor'restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets are recl.assified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without
donor restrictions in the statement of activities and changes in net assets.

-8-
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THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA. NH. INC.
D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2021)

All contributions are considered to be available for operational use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as donor restricted support that increases that net asset class.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, donor restricted net assets are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets
released from restrictions. The Organization records donor restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on their use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as donor restricted support and
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired and placed in
service.

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total,
but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's June 30, 2021 financial statements, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding investments.

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Organization has not experienced any. losses in such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts. In evaluating the collectability of
accounts receivable, the Organization monitors the amount of actual cash collected during each
month against the Organization's outstanding accounts receivable balances, as well as the aging
of balances. The Organization analyzes its past history and. identifies trends for each of its major
payer sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate, allowance for uncollectible accounts and
provision for bad debts. Management, as well as the Finance Committee of the Organization,
regularly reviews the aging and collection rate of major payer sources. Balances that are still
outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to the trade accounts receivable. Accounts
receivable, net amounted to $2,553,814 as of June 30, 2020.

-9-
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THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH, INC.

D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2021)

Investments

Investments in marketable securities and debt instruments with readily determined market values
are carried at fair value. Fair values are based on quoted market prices, if available, or estimated
using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Dividends, interest, and net realized and unrealized gains (losses) arising from investments are
reported as follows;

•  Increases (decreases) in net assets with donor restrictions if the terms of the gift require
that they be maintained with the corpus of a donor restricted endowment fund;

•  Increases (decreases) in net assets with donor restrictions if the terms of the gift or state
law irriposes restrictions on the use of the allocated investment income (loss); and

•  Increases (decreases) in net assets without donor restrictions in all other cases.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, if purchased, or at estimated fair value at date of
donation in the case of gifts, less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's policy is to
capitalize assets greater than $5,000, while minor maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the following
estimated lives as follows:

Furniture and equipment 3-10 years
Buildings and improvements 15-50 years
Computer equipment and software 3-10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Revenue Recognition

Program service fees, net revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing client
services. These amounts are due from third-party payors (including health insurers and
government programs), and others, and include variable consideration for retroactive revenue
adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the Organization
bills third-party payors" several days after services are provided. Revenue is recognized as
performance obligations are satisfied. It is the Organization's expectation that the period between
the time the service is provided to a client and the time a third-party payor pays for that service will
be one year or less.

Under the Organization's contractual arrangements, the Organization provides services to clients
for an agreed upon fee. The Organization recognizes revenue for client services in accordance
with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) Topic 606 and related guidance.
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Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations are satisfied over time when services
are provided. The Organization measures the performance obligation from when the Organization
begins to provide services to a client to the point when it is no longer required to provide services
to that client, which is generally at the time of notification to the Organization.

Each performance obligation is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract with the
client. As the performance obligations are met, revenue is recognized based upon allocated
transaction price. The transaction price is allocated to separate performance obligations based
upon the relative stand-alone selling price.

Because all of its performance obligations relate to short-term contracts, the Organization has.
elected to apply the optional exemption provided in PASS ASC Subtopic 606-10-50-14(a). and
therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting
period.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statements of functional revenues and expenses. Accordingly, certain costs
have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. General and
administrative expenses are allocated based on full time equivalents and program expenses are
allocated based on client count.

Estimated Thlrd-Partv Llabilltv

The Organization's estimated third-party liability consists of estimated amounts due to Medicaid
under capitation contract agreements. During 2022, Managed Care Organizations (MCO's)
authorized the Organization to use 50% of any unmet minimum threshold levels to be used to
invest for workforce improvements. Management has recognized a potential repayment of
$683,358 at June 30, 2022. During 2021, MCO's waived minimum threshold levels in full and
therefore, management did not recognize a potential repayment for services provided during 2021.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. There was no unrelated business income tax incurred by the Organization for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and
concluded the Organization has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant
unrelated business income and has taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to, or
disclosure within, the accompanying financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2021)

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP.
management has considered transactions or events occurring through October 31. 2022, which is
the date that the financial staternents were available to be issued.

2. Availabllitv and Liouiditv of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize its available funds. The Organization has
various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents, investments and a
line of credit.

For purposes, of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing operating activities as

• well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those operating activities.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources or, where appropriate, borrowings; Refer
to the statements of cash flows, which identifies the sources and uses of the Organization's cash
and cash equivalents.

The following financial assets are expected to be available within one year of the statement of
financial position date to meet general expenditures as of June 30:

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents available for operations $14,665,670 $10,646,433
Accounts receivable, net 1.356.320 1.868.512

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
^ within one year $^6,021,990 $12,514,945

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position includes amounts that are part of
the endowment and board-designated funds reserved for future capital expenditures, and thus are
excluded from the above table.

The Organization's Board of Directors has designated a portion of its resources without donor-
imposed restrictions to act as endowment funds. These funds are invested for long-term
appreciation and current income but remain available and may be spent at the discretion of the
Board of Directors.

The Organization has an available line of credit of $1.000,000 which was fully available at June 30,
2022. See Note 8.
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3. Program Service Fees and Concentrations of Credit Risk

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, approximately 77% and 83%, respectively, of the
revenue and support of the Organization was derived from managed care contracts. As of June
30, 2022 and 2021, accounts receivable due from government grants was approximately 62%
and 68%, respectively.

4. Investments

Investments, which are reported at fair value, consist of the following at June 30:

2022 2021

Common stock

Equity mutual funds
U.S. Treasury bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bond mutual funds

$ 853,384 $
170,273

440,237

408,234
118.598

889,746

291,844

571,446

269,361

122.873

$  1.990.726 $ 2.145.270

The Organization's investments are subject to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and
overall market volatility, which may substantially impact the values of investments at any given
time.

5. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the exchange price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly
transaction between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires
an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value.

The fair value hierarchy within ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three levels of inputs that may be
utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

■ Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level. 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active,, and other
inputs that are obseryable or can be corroborated by observable rriarket data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30:

2022

Common stock

Equity mutual funds
U.S. Treasury bonds

Corporate bonds
Corporate bond mutual funds

2021

Common stock

Equity mutual funds
U.S. Treasury bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bond mutual funds

Level 1

$  853,384 $
170,273
440,237

118.598

Level 2 Total

-  $ 853,384

170,273
440,237

408,234 408,234
:  118.598

$ 1.582.492 $ 408.234 $ 1.990.726

Level 1

$  889,746 $
291,844

571,446

122.873

Level 2

269,361

Total

$  889,746

291,844

571,446

269,361

122.873

$ 1.875.909 £ 269.361 £ 2.145.270

The fair value for Level 2 assets is primarily based on market prices of comparable or underlying
securities, interest rates, and credit risk, using the market approach for the Organization's
investments.

6. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2022 2021

Land, buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
Software

Vehicles

Construction in process

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

$ 5,883,482 $ 5,297,124
359,289 314,282
459,576 285,083
703,688 703,688
79,121 33,191
:  277.708

7,485,156
f4.367.6801

6,911,076

(4.112.9771

£ 3.117.476 £ 2.798.099
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2021)

7. Endowment

The Organization's endowment primarily consists of funds established for certain programs
provided by the Organization. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and
funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments. As required by U.S. GAAP,
net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Directors
to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Organization has interpreted the State of New Hampshire! Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (the Act) as allowing the Organization to spend or accumulate the amount of
an endowment fund that the Organization determines is prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes
and duration for which the endowment fund is established, subject to the intent of the donor as
expressed in the gift agreement. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization has included in
net assets with perpetual donor restrictions (1) the original value of gifts donated to be maintained
in perpetuity, (2) the original value of subsequent gifts to be maintained in perpetuity, and (3) the
accumulation to the gifts to be maintained in perpetuity made in accordance with the direction of
the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. If the donor-
restricted endowment assets earn investment returns beyond the amount necessary to maintain

•the endowment assets' contributed value, that excess is included in net assets with donor
restrictions until appropriated by the Board of Directors and, if applicable, expended in accordance
with the donors' restrictions. The Organization has interpreted the Act to permit spending from
funds with deficiencies in accordance with the prudent measures required under the Act. Funds
designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments are classified as net assets
without donor restrictions.

In accordance with the Act, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
(3) General economic conditions;
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation;
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources of the Organization; and
(7) The investment policies of the Organization.

Spending Policy

The Organization has a total return spending rate policy which limits the amount of investment
income used to support current operations. The long-term target is to limit the use of the
endowment to 4% of the moving average of the market value of the investments over the previous
twelve quarters ending June 30 of the prior fiscal year. There were no appropriations during 2022.
During 2021, the Board of Directors approved an appropriation of $45,003 to support current
operations. •
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Return Obiectlves and Risk Parameters

The Organization has adopted investment policies, approved by the Board of Directors, for
endowment assets that attempt to maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over
the long term. Accordingly, the investment process seeks to achieve an after-cost total real rate of
return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual
distribution with acceptable levels of risk. Endowment assets are invested in a well-diversified
asset mix, which includes equity and debt securities, that is intended to result in a consistent
inflation-protected rate of return that has sufficient liquidity to make an annual distribution of
accumulated interest and dividend income to be reinvested or used as needed, while growing the
funds if possible. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. Investment risk is
measured in terms of the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocation between asset
classes and strategies are managed to reduce the exposure of the fund to unacceptable levels of
risk.

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor or the Act requires the Organization to retain as a
fund of perpetual duration. Deficiencies result from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred
shortly after the investment of new contributions with donor-imposed restrictions to be maintained
in perpetuity and continued appropriation for certain programs that was deemed prudent by the
Board of Directors. The Organization has a policy that permits spending from underwater
endowment funds, unless specifically prohibited by the donor or relevant laws and regulations. Any
deficiencies are reported in net assets with donor-imposed restrictions. There were no deficiencies
of this nature as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Endowment Composition and Changes In Endowment

The endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - $ 313,012,$ 313,012

Board-designated endowment funds 2.302.975 : 2.302.975

$  2.302.975 $ 313.012 $ 2.615.987
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The changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows; ■

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2021

Investment loss, net of fees

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2022

$  2,418,378 $ 328,696 $ 2,747,074

f115.403) f15.684) (131.087)

S  2.302.975 $ 313.012 $ 2.615.987

The endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds

Board-designated endowment funds 2.418.378

$  328,696 $ .328,696

2.418.378

$  2.418.378 $ 328.696 S 2.747.074

The changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Wthout

Donor Wth Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2020

Contributions

Investment return, net of fees
Amount appropriated for expenditure
Appropriated funds not drawn from
investments

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2021

$  2,086,877 $ 275,595 $ 2,362,472

80,000

286,498

(40,000)
r  -

5.003

9,010

49,094

(5,003)

89,010

335,592

(45,003)

5.003

$  2.418.378 S 328.696 $ 2.747.074
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8. Line of Credit

The Organization maintains a $1,000,000 revolving line of credit with TD Bank, collateralized by a
mortgage on real property and substantially all business assets, carrying a variable interest rate of
TD base rate (4.75% at June 30, 2022), Interest is payable monthly. The line of credit had no
outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 or 2021. Management is in the process of renewing the line
of credit with TD Bank.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

Ooerating Leases

' The Organization leases an office facility and various pieces of equipment under operating lease
agreements. Expiration dates range from November 2022 to June 2026. Total rent expense
charged to operations was approximately $145,000 in 2022 and $80,000 in 2021.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2023 ■ $ 121,412

2024 18,803

2025 6,019

2026 1.874

$  148.108

10. Tax Deferred Annuity Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) employer-sponsored retirement plan. Employees are eligible
to participate as of the date of hire. Effective July 1, 2019, the Organization increased the matching
contribution to 100% of employee deferrals up to 5% of eligible compensation. In order to be
eligible for the match, an employee must work or earn a year of service, which is defined as at
least 1,000 hours during the 12-month period immediately following date of hire. In addition, the
Organization may elect to provide a discretionary contribution. There was no discretionary
contribution made for the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Expenses associated with this plan
were $364,888 and $290,063 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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11. Uncertainty and Relief Funding

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus disease ,(COVID-19) a
global pandemic. Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the
spread of COVID-19 by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and
imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group gatherings. Most sectors are
experiencing disruption to business operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed
government, reimbursement. The Coronavirus Preparedness and Response Supplemental

. Appropriations Act of 2020 and Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act
of 2021 provides several relief measures to allow flexibility to providers to deliver critical care.
There is unprecedented uncertainty, surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its continued
economic, ramifications, and additional government actions to mitigate them. Accordingly, while
management expects this matter to impact operating results, the related financial impact and
duration cannot be reasonably estimated.

The U.S government has enacted three statutes into law to address the economic impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak: the first on March 27, 2020, called the CARES Act; the second on December
27, 2020, called the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act
(CRRSAA); and the third on March 11. 2021 called the American Rescue Plan Act (ARRA). The
CARES Act, CRRSAA and ARRA, among other things, 1) authorize emergency loans to distressed
businesses by establishing, and providing funding for, forgivable bridge loans; 2) provide additional
funding for grants and technical assistance; 3) delay due dates for employer payroll taxes and
estimated tax payments for organizations; and 4) revise provisions of the Code, including those
related to losses, charitable deductigns, and business interest. Management has evaluated the
impact of these statutes on the Organization, including their potential'benefits and limitations that
may result from additional funding.

During 2020, the Organization received $2,048,300 under the CARES Act Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP). The PPP has specific criteria for eligibility and provides for forgiveness of the
funds under this program if the Organization meets certain requirements. In June 2021, the
Organization received notice from the Small Business Administration and the lender that its PPP
funds were forgiven. The revenue is separately reported in the statement of activities and changes
in net assets during the year ended June 30, 2021.

. The CARES Act also established the Provider Relief Funds (PRF) to support healthcare providers
in the battle against the COyiD-19 outbreak. The PRF is being administered by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services. The "Organization received PRF in the amount of
$149,673 during the year ended June 30, 2021. These funds are to be used for qualifying
expenses and to cover lost revenue due to COVID-19. The PRF are recognized as income when
qualifying expenditures have been incurred, or lost revenues have been identified. Management
believes the Organization has met the conditions necessary to recognize the PRF funds included
in other revenue in the statement of activities and changes in net assets for the year ended June
30,2021.
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During 2021, the Organization also received and . recognized emergency grant funding under the
CARES Act passed through the State of New Hampshire in the amount of approximately $127,500
to help offset incremental costs related to the pandemic. This funding is commonly referred to as
long-term care stabilization funds which are presented in other revenue in the statements of
activities and changes in net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021.

During 2022, the Organizatipn was awarded emergency grant funding under the ARPA and the
funds were passed through the State of New Hampshire In the amount of $617,579 for the purpose

of recruitment, retention, or training of direct support workers. As of June 30, 2022, management
believed the Organization had met the conditions necessary to recognize the ARPA funds in in full
which is included in Medicaid revenue in the statement of activities and changes in net assets for
the year ended June 30, 2022.
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Julie L. Chrlstenson-Collins,
L.I.C.S.W

Summary of Qualifications:

•  Seasoned clinical professional with 15 years supervisory and managerial experience in diverse, fast-paced, and
outcomes-driven settings.

•  Ability to facilitate and lead effective team initiatives such as the development and implementation of
policies and procedures, improved documentation standards, and programming initiatives to achieve targeted
outcomes and programgoals.

•  Promotes use of metrics and outcomes data to strengthen and enhance service quality.

Professional Experience:

Greater Nashua Mental Health, Nashua, New Hampshire

Program Manager, Substance.Use Disorder Services and Drug Court 2021 - present
Oversees fiscal and programmatic operations of GNMH's Substance Use Disorder services program including
contract with NHBDAS. Continue coordination of Drug Court program.

Drug Court Coordinator 2016-2021
Managed multidisciplinary program involving member agencies from local law enforcement, criminal justice, substance
use disorder treatment, and peer recovery organizations. Managed grants and contracts with state and federal flinders.
Developed and coordinatedprogrammatic activities and initiatives to ensure achievement of program goals including the
development of training activities and program policies supporting adherence to evidence-based practices. Established
data collection procedures and analyzed program outcome data to evaluate progress toward program goals. Engaged team
in strategizing and implementing initiatives to improve program quality. Provided oversight of the case management
program. Promoted the program and garnered community support through outreach and marketing. Ser\'ed as Peer
Evaluator for other Drug Court Programs in New Hampshire.

Crittenton Women's Union, Brighton, Massachusetts (nowknown asEMPath) 2005-2015
Director of Residential Services (2012 - 2015)
Managed operations of 58-fami|y congregate emergency shelter facility in accordance with contract requirements, agency
mission, and best practices including staff management and development, program operations, policy and procedure
development, budget, and contract management. Developed and coordinated activities and initiatives to ensure
achievement of contract and program goals including safety and wellbeing of families, permanent housing placement,
educational achievement, career advancement, and financialliteracy. Collected and analyzed program outcome data to
evaluate progress toward program goals and report to funders.

Assistant Director of Case Management for Housing (2011 -

2012)Coordinator of Case Management Services (2005 -
2011)
Member of program management team, responsible for ensuring a safe, healthy program environment and high-quality
case management services for up to 58 homeless families living in two congregate facilities. Oversaw and managed a
team of seven case managers, including direct supervision of licensed clinical social workers. Developed and coordinated
activities and initiatives to ensure achievement of contract and program goals related to case management such as
permanent housing placement, educational achievement, career advancement, and financial literacy. Collected and
analyzed program outcomes data to evaluate progress toward program goals and report to funders. Provided on-call
support to case management and direct care staff for risk management issues. Provided assessment and clinical case
management assistance to connect families in need of specialized services such as child welfareservices, substance abuse
treatment services, and urgent psychiatric and mental health services and collaborated with specialized providers to
support families' goals.
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Children's Friend and Family Service, Salem, Massachusetts 2003 - 2005

Outpatient Clinician
Provided outpatient therapy to diverse group of individuals and families, with" focus on work with adolescents. Conducted
initial psychosocial assessments and developed treatment plans. Documented work in accordance with agency and.
insurance requirements.Engaged family members in therapeutic work with children and adolescents. Collaborated with
client's collateral ser\'ice providers such as teachers, social workers, and psychopharmacology providers as needed.

Education and Liccnsure:

B.S. Human Service Studies

Cornell University
Ithaca, NY

MSW Clinical Social Work

Boston College
Chestnut Hill, MA

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker (L.I.C.S.W.) in the State of New Hampshire (license # 2621)



Mikaila Bayers 531 Lake Avenue
Manchester, NH 03103

603-475-2917

Mikaila.Bayers@gmail.com

Education

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, Manchester, NH Sept 2012-May 2016
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, G PA 3.5 2
Graduated May 2016
Accomplishments: Cum Laude; Psi Chi, The International Honor. Society in Psychology
Projects: Organized a successful food drive to support the NH Food Bank; Conducted a donation drive to support
homeless Veterans at Liberty House which raised $ 1200

Work Experience

Families in Transition, Manchester, NH June 20i6-Scpt 2016

Employment Program Navigator
•  Became fluent In programs ofTered by the slate and related agencies for high risk populations experiencing

homeiessness, substance abuse, mental illness, and unemployment
•  Contributed as a member of the Goodwill Job Connections team assisting FIT participants in acquiring

employment as well as state and other related agency benefits
•  Networked and maintained,relationships with partner agencies

AMAZON.COM, Nashua, NH June 2010-July 2015

Learning Coordinator {^iovc\o\\oT\) July 2012-July 2015
•  Interviewed, selected, and led team of trainers through peak seasons to support associate ramp of 350%
•  Reported to the site leader, managed ail aspects of site training programs, including material development,

orientation, training, record-keeping, and data entry
•  Supported operations and area managers in achieving year-ovcr-ycar improvements through the use of standard

work, visual management and ongoing supportive training
•  Analyzed weekly training performance metrics and provided senior leadership with process trends and develop

training programs for ambassadors and third-party staffing leaders to support associates below learning curve

Warehouse Associate . June 2010-July 2012
•  Worked all aspects of fulfillment center roles, including critical leadership roles and trained others in those areas
•  Frequently recognized for exceeding safety, quality and productivity expectations
•  Recipient of multiple awards for outstanding performance

Internship

Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Manchester, NH Jan 2016-May 2016
Residential Counselor Intern

•  Supported clients in successfully accomplishing activities of daily living such as maintaining living area(s),
cooking, and shopping as well as encouraged clients to maintain healthy personal hygiene habits

•  Engaged clients in social exercises including playing games and participating in socially oriented activities

Volunteer Experience

NEW HAMPSHIRE SFCA, Stratham', NH May 2012 - September 2012

•  Assisted in supporting daily operations, including caring for healthy and sick dogs



Scott Av jyU
IT Support Specialist

y y.

Highly motivated Technical Support Specialist with a passion for problem solving and customer support,

m
I.vfj
I* .s

tli'

EDUCATION

Computer Engineering Technology
Rochester Institute oF Technology

1""

03/2013-12/?0t9

Coursec

- Real Time Embedded

Systems

- Embedded Systems Design

Rochester. New York

Network Technologies

- Electronics

Rochester.'.fNew York

WORK EXPERIENCE

IT Support Co-op
EMA Design Automation
02/2017-03/2018
Distributor of Cadence OrCAD software [; 'j

r .1!

Achievements/Tasks T'.ij
- Designed an Inventory system for training laptops. Solved

installation issues on Windows OS. This included debugging
drivers, editing system environment variables, and f jl
troubleshooting VPN connectivity.

Contact: Walt Psyka - wofrp@emo-edo.com

Nashua, New,Honipsife

IT Summer Help
Nashua School District

06/2016-08/2019

Achievemer\ts/Tasks

- Lead the deployment of over 1600 Chromebooks to 1 STschools
across the district. Wrote a Python program to assist mapping
ail the phones in Nashua High North for a new phone system.
Coordinated with supervisors to upgrade every computer to
Windows 10. Wrote a Python program to scrape inforrnation
off of old website to assist in the development of thefnew
website.

Contact: Susan Wilborg - wiiborgs^nashua.edu i"A,i

TECHNICAL SKILLS

[EiaEgifiesaa"

PERSONAL PROJECTS

Card Came Engine (03/2020 - Present)
- Developing a game engine to play family card games over the

internet.

- Player is able get a hand and play a card on the board

Graph (09/2019 - 11/2019) CiT
~ Developed a graphical user interface to explore different graph

theory concepts such as eccentricity

LANGUAGES

Python o o o Q o

C« 0 o o 0 o

C/C++ o o o o o

Java o o o o o

HTML o o o o 0

JavaScript o o o o o

Go o o o o o

INTERESTS

Programming Languages j. Al jBaseball

Came Engines DRYPincipal TOD



CoiTimunity Council of Nashua, NH DBA/Greater Nashua Mental Health
Key Personnel 9.30.23 -6.30.24

Name Job Title % Salary Funded
by this Program

Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Julie Christenson-Collins, LICSW Director of Substance Use

Disorder Services and

Integrated Care.

0 $0

Mikaila Bayers Coordinator of Substance

Use Disorder Services

15% _ $6,334

VACANT - to be hired Case Manager 75% $25,108

Scott Avery IT Support 2.5% $1313



Community Council of Nashua, NH DBA/Greater Nashua Mental Health
Key Personnel 7.1 ■24-9.29.24

Name Job Title % of Salary
Funded by this
program

Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Julie Christenson-Collins, LICSW Director of Substance Use
Disorder Services and
Integrated Care.

0% $0.

Mikaila Bayers Coordinator of Substance
Use Disorder Services

17.5% $2,463

VACANT-to be hired Case Manager 75% $8,369
Scott Avery IT Support 2.5% $438
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Kiijt & Fox
Director
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD^NH 03301

603-271 -9544 ! -800-852-3345 Ext. 9544
Fax:603.271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 wrww.dhhs-nh.gov

March 15. 2023

13

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departrnent of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral He^th.
to enter into contracts with the Contractors listed below In an amount not to exceed $275,806 to
orovide behavioral-based Intervention. Contingency Management programming, for individuals
with a diagnosed Opioid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder, with the option to renew for up to tour (4)
additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through September 29, 2023.

Contractor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Contract Amount

Blue Heron Neurofeedback and
Counseling, LLC

362670 Statewide $152,251

Community Council of Nashua, N.H.
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

154112-

8001
Statewide $54,005

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
275119-

8001
Statewide $69,550

Total: $275,806

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are
anticipated to be available for State Fiscal Year 2024, with the authority to ®djust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office.
If needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to implement evidence- and behavioral-ba^d intervention
programs, known as a Contingency Management. Contingency Managemert ^ve
been sho\wn to be effective in reducing cravings, non-prescnbed daig use. and risky behaviors
while increasing treatment attendance and prescribed medication adherence: for individuals with
a clinically diagnosed Stimulant or Opioid Use Disorder.

Services identified in these agreements will be provided in conjunction with existmg
evidence-based outpatient and intensive-outpatient substance use disorder treatment services.

The Deparimtnl of HtQUh ond //union Seroicei'Miision it lojoin conxmunUUt ondfoniUea
in providing opportuniUti for-eilizens to achieue heallh and independence.



Hia Excellency. Governor Chriatopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabla Counci]

Page 2 of 2

allowing NH to expand and increase accessibility to, and foster engagement with, treatment
programming. Contingency Management Programming offers enhancements that allow clinicians
to customize and individualize treatment goals and assist individuals to identify and modify their
behaviors, as related to their substance use, with the goal of achieving and sustaining recovery

Approximately 170 individuals will be served, across all three (3) Contractors, through
September 29. 2023.

Individuals participating in Contingency Management Programming will receive positive
reinforcement for achieving identified treatment goals including; attendance at treatment
sessions, adherence to prescribed medications for Opioid Use Disorder and/or other health
conditions, as applicable, and for evidence of positive behavioral change through the provision of
stimulant- and/or opioid-negative urine specimens. Clinicians will address ambivalence and
discuss and problem solve barriers to program attendance and participation with Individuals who
do not achieve identified treatment goals. Clinicians will offer support and encouragement to
continue taking positive steps toward, and engaging in, their recovery efforts and will assist
individuals in connecting with community-based services to support their treatment and recovery
efforts, as needed.

The Department will monitor services through regularly scheduled meetings and the
review of monthly aggregate and de-identified data and aftercare survey reports to ensure project
deliverables and outcomes are being met.

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from December 6,
2022 through January 9, 2023. The Department received four (4) responses that were reviewed
and scored by a team of qualified Individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request individuals with stimulant
and/or opioid use disorder will not have access to this supplementary and powerful, evidence-
based intervention which may result in lower treatment retention and engagement rates,
decreased abstinence, and a decline in overall recovery experiences.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number CFDA 93.788. FAIN H79TI083326

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-«M2-«20510-704000<KI HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVC8 DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV.
BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT
100% F«d«rtl Fund#, _% Gtn«nl Fundt, _% Othtr Fund! (N»m« of Soupm) _ ^

State FIscaJ Year Cleti! Account Claas TiOe Job Number Current Amount
Increeae

(Decreaae)
Reviaed Amount

2023 ■ 074*500580 Welfare AjtistarKe 02057053 $0.00 $93,305.00 $03,305.00

2024 074*500580 Welfare Ajtliiance 02057053 SO.OO $58,048.00 $58,048.00

Sub Total SO.DO $152,251.00 $152,251.00

Vendors 154112*6001

Clan/Account Clasa TMe Job Number Current Arrtount Inoeeae Reviaed Amount

074*500589 Weilaie Aasutance 02057053 $0.00 $36 094.00

074*500589 Weiiare Aailsiance 92057053 $0 00 $17,911.00

Sub Total $0.00 $54,005.00

State Fiacal Year Claaa / Account. Claaa Title Job Number Current Amotml
Increeae

(Decreaael
Reviaed Amount

2023 074*500589 Welfare Asiiitance 920S70S3 $0.00 $43,489.00 $43,469.00

2024 074*500589 Welfare Astlitance 92057053 $0.00 S26.081.00 $26,081.00

Sub Total $0.00 $89,550.00 $89,550.00

Ovtrall Tout: 50.00} S27S.806.00| $275.S06.00|

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID #

Project Title

RFP-2023-DBHWEFFEC

EffectiveTractices for the Treatment of .Oploid and.Stimulant Use Disorders

/

IMaximum

Points

Available

Blue Heron;

Neurpfeedback

& Counseling

Community

Council of

Nashua dba

Greater Nashua

Mental Health

Easters'eals of

NH Farnum.

Hope'on Haven
Hill •

Technical

Oeve'Iopment Plan (Qi) 50 45 45 24 48

Implemenlation Plan (Q2)' 50 45 45 20 48

Engagement & Satisfaction (03) ■  30 12 27 14 28 .

Aftercare Survey (04) 20. 10 . 15 8 15

Staffing Plan (05)' 20 ' 18 17 5 18

Subtotal • Technical 170 130 149 71 157

Cost

Budget Sheet (Appendix E) "" JO ■ 49 60 21 60

Program Staff List (Appendix F) '  30' . 9 21 9 22

Subtotal - Cost 100 58 ' 81 30 82

TOTAL POINTS 270 188 230 101 239

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $152,251 $57,344 $103,087 $69,550 ■

Reviewer Name Title

I

(Amanda Spreeman
• 1

t
1 jsOR Contracts & Program Mngr .

jMelissa Girard .1
t isCR Finance Manager j

Kassandra Martin' • 1
j  ' • \
|SQR Data Analyst • .1



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20507F98-5501-4914-B307-C503F37F4864
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject: RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid nnd Stimulant Use Disorders

Noiice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that.is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMEhTT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

l.l State Agency Name

New Hampshire Depanmcnl of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Council of Nashua, N.H.
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

1.4 Contractor Address

7 Prospect St., Nashua, NH 03060

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-889-6147

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-920510-

70400000-074-500589

1.7 Completion Date

9/29/2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$54,005

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.l 1 Contractor Signature 3/24/2023
UecuSlgtMd by:

1.12 Narhc and Title of Contractor Signatory
Cynthia L whitaker

president and CEO

1.13 State Agency signature 3/28/2023
by:

S, fff)»

1.14 Name and Title of Slate Agency Signatory
<atja S. Fox

Di rector

1.15 ApprovaT&y^lie N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:
V

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
O6tiiSl0'*«l by:

On:

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number; G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials

..

Oate 3/24/2023



OocuSJgn Envelope ID: 20507F98-550M914-8307.C503F37F4864

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block l.l
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.)
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor.and Executive
Council approve thi.s Agreement a.s indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Enective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contracior prior to
the. Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contracior,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision-of this Agreement .to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcreiindcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or pthcrwisc modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contracior for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, In no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block-1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 Jn connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which imposc-ony obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United Slates, the Contracior
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United Stales issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrcc.s to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contracior warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement', and for a period of six (6) months aficr the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contracior shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a corhbincd effort to
perform the Scr\'ic« to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials
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OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 20507F98-5501-4914-B307-C503F37F4864

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 AJiy one or more of ihe following acis or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement,
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Stale may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:,
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days aflcr giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the Stale may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or ,
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof aflcr
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early terrnination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fiflccn (15) days aflcr the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Stale's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to Ihe Slate a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATAyACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,

.files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other c.xisting law. Di.sclosurc.of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an Independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSlCNMENT/DELEGATlON/SUBCONTRACrS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fiflccn (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty ̂ rccnt (50%) or more of the
voting, shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to \yhich it Is not a
party.

• 13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor "shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for-any personal injury or property damages,
patent or cop>Tight infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise, out oQ the acts or omissr^^ the

Page 3 of 4
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OocuSign Envelope 10: 20507F98-5501-4914.B3D7.C503F37F4884

Contractor, or subcontractors, including but riot limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Slate. This, covenant in paragraph 13 .shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

J4. INSURANCE.

M.I The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following in.surance:
M.I.I commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, ,in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than

. 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph M.I herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Stale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrtincate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificate(s) of insurance
for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration dale of each,
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

J5. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is incompliance with or e.xempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("ii'orkeis'
Coinpensaiion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewalfs) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a parly hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Slates
Post OfTicc addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
•or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OE LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and con.<nrued in accordance with the

laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement .shall..not be
con.sirucd to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to e.xplain, modify, amplify or aid In the
Interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the panics, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
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EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows: .

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the'
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed., The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

•0$
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Serviceis

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must develop and implement a behavioral-based intervention
Contingency Management Program (CMP) for individuals receiving outpatient
treatment for Opioid Use Disorder (CUD) or Stimulant Use Disorders (StimUD).

1.2. The Contractor must ensure the CMP is available.statewide, to individuals
who:

1.2.1. Are residents of or are experiencing homelessness in NH;

1.2.2. Are aged 18 and older; and

1.2.3. Meet the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth
Edition (DSM-5) criteria for an Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and/or
Stimulant Use Disorder (StimUD) as determined by a:

1.2.3.1. Licensed counselor; or

1.2.3.2. An unlicensed counselor who:

1.2.3.2.1; Is under the supervision of a licensed counselor;
or

1.2.3.2.2. Is working toward licensure; and

1.2.3.2.3. Has completed the required coursework for
licensure, as required by:

1.2.3.2.3.1. NH Board of Alcohol and Other

Drug Use Providers;

1.2.3.2.3.2. NH Board, of Mental Health
■  ̂ Practice: or

1.2.3.2.3.3. NH Board of Psychology.

1.3. The Contractor ensure the Contingency Management Program (CMP) provides
positive reinforcement for evidence of desired behavioral change to individuals
receiving outpatient treatment for OUD and/or StimUD. The Contractor must
ensure CMP services:

1.3.1. Are provided in conjunction with existing evidence-based Intensive
Outpatient (lOP) and Outpatient (OP) levels of care;

1.3.2. Are based on strengths of the individual;

1.3.3. Are based on evidence of the individual's specific, defined, and
positive behavioral change;

1.3.4. Address the individual's ambivalence about decreasing substance
use;

„ fw
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EXHIBIT B

.  1.3.5. Create the opportunity to establish positive expectations:

1.3.6. Allow the individual to have power in decision making regarding their
treatment; and

1.3.7. Assist the individual to modify their behaviors to achieve and sustain
recovery.

1.4. The Contractor must provide the Department with Program Summary for review
and approval within 10 days of the contract effective date. The Contractor must
ensure the Summary clearly outlines the proposed CMP including, but not
limited to:

1.4.1. Program structure and policies.

1.4.2. A matrix of available incentives and associated target behaviors for
each. The Contractor must ensure incentives:

1.4.2.1. Are valuable and desirable to the Participant:.

1.4.2.2. Are awarded to the Participant at time of targeted behavior
achievement;

1.4.2.3. Increase in value weekly as the Participant demonstrates
consistency in achieving the targeted behavior;

1.4.2.4. Do not exceed a value of $15 per incentive, per Participant;
and

1.4.2.5. Do not exceed a total value of $75 per Participant, per year.

1.4.3. Frequency for incentive award and distribution that ensures program
participants have multiple opportunities throughout the course of their
treatment to" receive incentives.

1.4.4. Internal process for tracking incentive award and distribution.

1.5. The Contractor must identify individuals who meet the criteria, described in
Section 1.2, through outreach to:

1.5.1. Existing in-house mental health providers.

1.5.2. Local Community service providers, including but not limited to:

1.5.2.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment providers.

1.5.2.2. Mental Health treatment providers.

1.5.2.3. Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs).

1.5.2.4. Hospitals.

1.5.2.5. Primary Care offices.

1.5.2.6. The Doorway.

1.5.2.7. Emergency Shelters and other Housing Programs:
-OS

00)
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EXHIBIT B

1.5.2.8. Community-based Recovery Organizations.

1.6. The Contractor must provide individuals who meet the criteria, described,in
Section 1.2, with detailed program information and offer them the opportunity
to participate in the program. The Contractor must ensure CMP information
includes, but is not limited to:

1.6.1. , Program overview including, but not limited to:

1.6.1.1; Clear and detailed expectations of the targeted behavior(s).

1.6.1.2. How the targeted behavior(s) is/are measured.

1.6.1.3. How incentives are eamed and distributed.

1.6.1.4. Duration of program.

1.6.2. Program structure and policies including but not limited to:

1.6.2.1. Erirollment.

1.6.2.2. Data collection.

1.6.2.3. Surveys.

1.6.2.4. Discharge.

1.7. The Contractor must ensure all individuals who choose to participate in the
CMP (herein after referred to as Participants), and their guardian if applicable,
receive, review, and sign an informed consent prior to program participation.
The Contractor must ensure informed consent includes, but is not limited to:

1.7.1. Risks and benefits of participation.

1.7.2. Notice of privacy practices shall be provided to the Department upon
request.

1.7.3. Notice of ability to rescind consent at any time.

1.8. The Contractor must ensure the signed informed consent form is kept in the
Participant's CMP record.

1.9. The Contractor must ensure eligible participants who decline to participate in
the CMP:

1.9.1". , Will not be denied any treatment services for which they are eligible;
and ■ ,

1.9.2. Will be offered the opportunity to enroll during their'next scheduled
SLID treatment services appointment.

1.10. The Contractor must ensure Participants who are discharged from the CMP
are given the opportunity to reapply for admission to the program.

1.11. The Contractor must meet with Participants weekly for CMP check-in. During
weekly CMP check-in, the Contractor must: '

cm
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1.11.1. Update the Participant on the number of weeks they have participated
■  ■ in the program and the number of weeks remaining:

1.11.2. If the Participant has achieved the targeted behavior(s). the Contractor
must provide the Participant with:

1.11.2.1. Positive reinforcement for the behavior(s); and

1.11.2.2. The corresponding eamed incentive.

1.11.3. If the Participant has not achieved the targeted behavior(s), the
Contractor must:

1.11.3.1. Discuss and problem solve any barriers to program
attendance or participation.

1.11.3.2. Offer support and encouragement to take positive steps and
continue to engage in their recovery efforts.

1.11.4. Assist the Participant connecting with community-based services to
support treatment and recovery as applicable.

1.12. The Contractor must ensure earned incentives are awarded to Participants at
the time of targeted behavior(s) achievement.

1.13. The Contractor must provide Certificates of Completion to Participants who
successfully complete the CMP. The Contractor must ensure CMP program
completion is defined as the Participant:

1.13.1. Remaining in SUD treatment services throughout the CMP program;
or

1.13.2. Transitioning to SUD treatment services elsewhere.

1.14. The Contractor must ensure Participant records related to the CMP are
recorded and maintained separate from the Participant's clinical outpatient
record.

1.15. The Contractor must ensure the CMP is implemented to fidelity. The Contractor
must:

1.15.1. Consult with the Department on CMP adaptations, as needed, to meet
the needs of the individuals served; and

1.15.2. Ensure CMP adaptations are not implemented prior to, or without.
Department approval.

1.16. The Contractor must conduct continuous quality improvement to determine
needs or modifications.

1.17. The Cpnlractor must ensure the CMP is implemented no later than 90 days
after the contract approval date.

1 18 The Contractor must comply with all current and future federal and state-taws,
(3
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rules, and regulations, regarding this scope of work.

1.19. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management and improve results.

1.20. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department, on a monthly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department."

1.21. Program Marketing

1.21.1. The Contractor must develop marketing materials to be used for
program outreach. The Contractor must ensure CMP marketing
materials:

1.21.1.1. Educate individuals receiving services and service providers
about the CMP including, but not limited to:.

1.21.1.1.1. Benefits and successes of using this approach
in conjunction with other evidence-based
treatment modalities;

1.21.1.1.2. Program overview.

1.21.1.1:3. Program structure and policies.

1.21.1.2. Are targeted to:

1.21.1.2.1. Individuals diagnosed with ODD or StimUD;
and

1.21.1.2.2. .In-house and community-based service
providers who work with individuals diagnosed
with OUD or StimUD.

1.22. The Contractor must ensure all CMP-related marketing materials are submitted
to the Department for review and approval prior to distribution of materials.

1.23. CMP Aftercare Surveys

1.23.1. The Contractor must administer CMP Aftercare Surveys, as provided
by the Department, to each participant upon discharge from the CMP,
to assess overall program experience, satisfaction, and outcorhes.

■  1.23.2. The Contractor must utilize a digital survey software, e.g. Survey
Monkey or equivalent, to administer surveys, collect participant
responses, and analyze survey results. The Contractor must ensure
surveys:

■  1.23.2.1. Allow for only anonymous responses, so participants feel
safe in giving honest feedback;

1.23.2.2. Shall not elicit a response that would collect personally
identifiable, meaning information that would allow the
constructive identification of any individual and thatfthece is

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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no reasonable basis to believe the data could be used, alone
or in combination with, other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an
individual who is' a subject of the information, protected
health, SUD, or other state or federally regulated
information;

1.23.2.3. Are reviewed and approved by the Department prior to
distribution; and

1.23.2.4. Are reviewed and utilized for program enhancement and
improvement.

1.23.3. The Contractor must ensure survey results data are aggregate and de-
identified. ^

1.23.4. The Contractor must share aggregate, non-identifiable survey results
with the Department as requested.

1.24. Data Entry Requirements

1.24.1. The Contractor must provide the Department with aggregate, non-
identifiable data that supports the CMP Contract deliverables. The
Contractor must;

1.24.1.1. Work with the Department's .Contractor,. Arkansas
Foundation for Medical Care Inc. (AFMC), to obtain
authorization to enter CMP data into AFMC's REDCap
system, which will be used by AFMC to provide aggregate
reporting to the Department.

1.24.1.2. Enter aggregate, non-identifiable CMP data into the AFMC
system on a monthly basis. The Contractor must ensure
data entered includes:

1.24.1.2.1. Demographics;

1.24.1.2.2. Number of individuals served;

1.24.1.2.3. Number-of CMP sessions attended per
individual;

1.24.1.2.4. Number of individuals who completed the
CMP; :

1.24.1.2.5. Number of individuals who did not complete the
CMP and reason(s) for non-completion;

1.24.1.2.6. Type, number, and cost of gift cards provided,
per individual; and

1.24.1.2.7. Other CMP data as determined and reougjted
by the Department.

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02 B-2.0 Contraclor Initials ^
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1.24.2. The Contractor must ensure aggregate and de-identified data
excludes information that would allow for the constructive identification
of any individual, meaning that there is no reasonable basis to believe
that the data could be used, alone or in combination with other
reasonably available information, by an anticipated recipient to identify
an individual who Is a subject of the information.

1.25. ReoortinQ

1.25.1. The Contractor will be providing the Department with aggregate data
from its clients to support the Contract deliverables and will not be
handling or storing regulated or identifiable data on the Department's
behalf..

1.25.2. The Contractor must ensure at no time will the Contractor share its
client personally identifiable information, protected health information,
SUD or other state or federally regulated information with the
Department verbally, digitally or hard copy in association with this
Contract.

1.25.3.. The Contractor must submit monthly reports to the Department, in a
format approved by the Department. The Contractor must ensure
monthly CMP reports include only aggregate and non-identifiable data
including:

1.25.3.1. Demographics; .

1.25.3.2. Number of individuals served;

1.25.3.3. Number of sessions individuals attended;

1.25.3.4. Number of individuals completing the CMP;

1.25.3.5. Number of individuals not completing the CMP and
reason(s) non-completion;

1.25.3.6. Number and cost of incentives provided, per individual; and

1.25.3.7. Other CMP data as determined and requested by the
Department.

1.25.4. The Contractor must submit monthly CMP Participant Survey results
to the Department, in a format approved by the Department. The
Contractor must ensure survey results data is aggregate and non-
identifiable.

1.25.5. The Contractor may be required to provide other data and metrics to
the Department in a'fonmat specified by the Department.

1.26. Staffing

1.26.1. The Contractor and its program staff must attend the CMP tcalfling.
provided by the Department's designated trainer, prior

RFP-2023-OBH-08-EFFEC-02 ' B-2.0 Contraclof InUialS
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implementation.

1.26.2. The Contractor must recruit and maintain sufficient staff assigned to
the CMP necessary to perform and carry out all of the functions,
requirements, roles and duties as proposed. The Contractor must
ensure CMP staff are trained:

1.26.2.1. On the program model prior to working in the program;

1.26.2.2. To safeguard the confidentiality, privacy, and information
security of the participant information; and

1.26.2.3. Any access to Department databases shall require
completion of Department information security training as
required.

1.27. Performance Measures

1.27.1. The Contractor must provide key data in a format and at a frequency
specified by the Department for the following performance measures:

1.27.1.1.95% of participants complete the required sessions in the
CMP;

1.27.1.2. 95% of participant assessments demonstrate the treatment
plan was based on the participants strengths and Identified
motivational incentives; and

1.27.1.3.90% of participants decreased to stopped stimulant use
after 90 days of completion of the program as indicated
through aftercare survey results

1.27.2. The Department may include other performance measures in the
resulting contract(s).

1.28. State Opioid Response fSORI Grant Standards

1.28.1. The Contractor must establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with the Doorways in compliance with all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive
payments for services funded with SOR resources.

1.28.2. The Contractor must ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doorways
are:

1.28.2.1. Completed and documented ,in the individual's file; and

1.28.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as needed for
payment of invoices for services provided through SOR-
funded initiatives.

1.28.3. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services, rendered
from SOR funds, have a documented history or current-diagrps^ of
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Opioid Use Disorder (CUD) or Stimulant Use Disorders (StimUD) or
are at risk for such.

1.28.4. The Contractor must coordinate completion of Government
Performance Results Act (GPRA) initial interview and associated
follow-ups at six (6) months and discharge for individuals referenced
previously.

1.28.5. The Contractor must ensure that SCR grant funds are not used to
purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or for providing treatment
using marijuana. The Contractor must ensure:

1.28.5.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of OUD or
StimUD.

1.28.5.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or
organization that provides or permits marijuana use for the
purposes of treating substance use or mental health
disorders.

1.28.5.3. This marijuana" restriction applies to all subcontracts and
Memorandums of Understanding that receive SOR funding.

1.28.6. The Contractor must ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals
utilizing SOR funding.

1.28.7.. If the Contractor intends to distribute Fentanyl test strips, the selected
Applicant(s) must provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the
Department for approval prior to implementation. The selected
.Applicant(s) must ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited
to:

1.28.7.1. Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips;

1:28.7.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

1.28.7.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

1.28.8. The Contractor must provide services to eligible individuals who:

1.28.8.1. Receive Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) services
from other providers, including the individual's primary care
provider;

1.28.8.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

1.28.8.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as
prescribed regardless of the class of medication.

1.28.9. The Contractor must ensure individuals who refuse to consent to
information sharing with the Doorways do not receive services utilizing
SOR funding.

.  UP
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1.28.10. The Contractor must ensure individuals who rescind consent to
information sharing with the Doorway do not receive any additional
services utilizing SOR funding.

1.28.11. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department and other SOR
funded Contractors, as requested and directed by the Department, to
improve GPRA collection.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through H and J, which are
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the Slate has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) "days of the Agreernent
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

■3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Hurnan
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
.prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any
RFP.2023'DBH-08-EFFEC-02 B-2.0 Conlreclor Initials ^ _
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.. original materials produced, including, but not limiled to;

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. ^ Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will, procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirernents of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.'1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received

.  or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and

■  to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department. '

(m
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4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment.for such
•services.

4.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records. maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder. the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as

•  are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

^.— 05
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Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, from the State Opiold Response (SOR) II Grant,
as awarded on August 29. 2022, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, CFDA 93.788, FAIN H79T1083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractoras a Subredpient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

4. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services rendered from SOR
funds have a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder
or Stimulant Use Disorder.

5. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment" of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-1, SFY 2023 Budget and
Exhibit C-2, SFY 2024 Budget.

6. The Contractor must seek payment for services, as follows:

6.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other
payor sources.

6.2. Second, the Contractor shall.charge Medicare, if applicable.

.6.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as
follows:

6.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care
Organization (MCQ). the Contractor shall be paid in accordance
with its contract with the MCO.

6.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall .bill Medicaid for
services on the Fee for Service (FFS) schedule:

6.4.. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with either
the Contractor's Sliding Fee Scale Program or the Sliding Fee Scale
provided by .the Department.

6.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale
remains unpaid, charge the-Department for the unpaid balance.

7. The Contractor must submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation
in a form satisfactory to the Stale by the fifteenth (15lh) working da^^lhe

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02 C-2.0 " C<>ntr8clof initials S
Community Council of Nashua, NH 3/24/2023
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health Papo 1 of 4. Dale
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following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month.

8. The Contractor must ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to
the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices must not include any client
protected health information or personally identifiable information and shall be
net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this
agreement. The Contractor must ensure:

8.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

8.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

8.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees
worked for wages reported under this contract.

8.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430{i)(1) Charges to Federal
awards for salaries and wages must be based on
records that accurately reflect the work performed.

8.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are
available from the Department upon request.

8.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

8.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

8.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

8.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract

8.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

8.1.3.1.4. Food or water.

8.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescrit^e.
or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana.

8.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

8.1.3.1.7. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for
i  clients.

8.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable stale fiscal year.

8.1.5. Cost center reports.

8.1.6. Profit and loss report.

8.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance

Advices do not need to be supplied with the invoice, but should
be retained to be available upon request.

8.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or
offset based on third party revenue received.

m
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.  8.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue
and.other financial information as requested by the Department.

8.2. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesbdas@dhhs.nh.QOv or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

9. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with
further restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

10. The Contractor agrees that invoices submitted late may be subject to non
payment.

11. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized

■  expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

12. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

14. Audits

14.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit todhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition.B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Cornmission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02 C-2.0 ConlraclOf Initials
Community Council of Nashua. NH 3/24/2023
d/b/8 Groaler Nashua Menial Health Page 3 of 4 Dale
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dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.qov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements
of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
awards.

14.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA .within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. In addition to, and not in any way in lirnilation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
.Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

fw-
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New Himpthiro Department of Health and Human Sorvlcos
Comptere one bud^t form for eeeh budgoi period.

Contractor Name: 'CcfTYTWiHy Council of ffastiua. NH. Inc. DBA/ Gnotof Nashua Monlol Hooflh

Budget Request (or;-Conf/nponc/Monepomoof

Budget Period Fatxvafy 1, 2023 • Juno 30, 2023

Indlroct Cost Rate (If applicable) 10.00%

-  Lino Item

•  •* <•

; Program Cost - Funded by OHHS

1. Salary AWaoes

$14,038

2. Frlnoe Berwnis

$4,155

3. ConsuCtants

$0

4., Equipmenl

Indirect cost rale cannot be applied lo equipmenl

coslsper2CFR200.i and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

/  •

.

5.(d) Supplies • Educatiortal
$0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab
S2.188

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy

.  ■ SO

S.(d) Supplies • Medical
$938

S.(e) Supplies Oince
$188

6. Travel

$250

3/24/2023
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e. (a) Other; Markoling/ Communlcaiions .

$5,000

8. Olher • Education end TraJnIno

'  . $0

6. (0} Olher • Other {spedly below) -

CONTINGENCY INCENTIVES $5,100

CSO-8 a^ni SaiislKtion Ouoslicnnoim
$156

.  •

Other (ptease specify) ■  $0

9. Sut>racipienl Contracts

SO

Total Dirocl Costs $32,813

Total Indirect Costs .  • $3,281

TOTAL $36,094

ii - . 11 .. ' • 11 1. - II ■ li .. 11

00)

3/24/2023



DocuSIgn Envelope 10: 20507F9&-5501-4914-B307.C503F37F4864

Exhibit C-2, SFY2024 Budgcl RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02

Now Hampthiro Dopartmont o( Koalth and Human Sorvlcoa
Ccnpffto ono Oud(H>' form tor oacn but/gvl ptrkxi.

Contractor Namo: Community Counci/ o/Atos/wo, NHjnc. DBA/Grosioi Nashua Moniol Haalth

Budget Raquaat for; Contingoncy Managoment

Budget Period July 1. 2023 ■ ScfMembar 29. 2023

Indirect Cost Rate (If appllcablo) 10.00%

Lino Item

. program Cost " Fundod;by OHHS

1. Salary &WaQes '

$8,711

•

2. Fringe Benefits

S2.439

3. Consuiianis

-  • $0

4. Equlpmenl

indiroci cost rate carvxM be epplied to equipment

costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

'  . - $0

5.(a) Supplies • Educatlor^al
$0

S.(b) Supplies • Lab
$1,313

S.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy
$0

S.(d] Supplies • Medical
$563

S.(e) Supplies Office
$113

6. Travel

•

-

3/24/2023
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7. Sotwere

-

6. (a) Other • Mailceting/ Communications.
.

8. (b> Other • Education and Tralntrw

•

8. (c) Other • Other (specify betorr)

CONTINGENCY INCENTIVES $3,050

CSQ-6 Ohm SBtlsfaclkm Quosticnnoifo S94

Othor (pl0359 specify) $0

9. Subrecloient Contracts

$0

Total Direct Costs S16.2S3

Total Indirect Costs $1,628

TOTAL $17,911

3/24/2023
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections:5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.)! and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
.US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sut>-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmeht. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies-that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs: and
i .2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the slalement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the slalement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by'the terms of the statement; and
-1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaUgency

fi
Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials

Workplace Requirements 3/24/2023
djA)HHS/i 10713. Page1ol2 Date
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements, of Ihe Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, crty. county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on fi le that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: Greater Nashua Mental Health

DocuStgoMl trf.ooeu5i9c>«d tty-

3/24/2023 OfAHjUfi i (WufriiiLK
Date" Namey'tS'^^ia L whitaker

Title. President and CEO

•D9

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials^
Workplace Regulremenis 3/24/2023
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Reslriclions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certificalion:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
^Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The-undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: * •

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of anyagency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation., renewal, amendment, or.
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
' influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,

an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal-contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned, shall require that the language of this certificalion be included In the award
document for sul)-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Greater Nashua Mental Health

—OoeuSlgMd by;

3/24/2023

Dili ^ L whitaker

President and CEO

ilM

lAituix i (Wufntt/

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTiFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of.
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility fi^atters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's.
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION • .

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be •
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed .
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and-
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive"Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction tie entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it vyill include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, fneligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in.a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it kno.ws that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of rej;ords
in order to render in good faith the certification required by (his clause. The knowledge andj

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Oebarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters 3/24/202B
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information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a iower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended.-debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debanment, declared meiigibie, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
conriection svith obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knovvledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.'1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the.above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting (his proposal (contract) that It will
include this clause'entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineliglbllity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without mc^ification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name; Greater Nashua Mental Health

DoeuSiflMd by;

3/24/2023 6 (Wtiffttcr
Diti ^ L whitaker

3*1116. and CEO

Exhibit F - CertiTtcallon Regarding Debamienl, Suspension Contractor Initials
AfvJ Other Responsibility Matters 3/24/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the deliveiy of services or
t)enefits. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Ftehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with di^bilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does.not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for parinerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

[wExhibit G

Contractor Iniliais
CwiITication ol Coniptl«n6« wtlh pwiaMnQ to FoOatal NorxJjcriminotten. Equal T«eaimant of Faiih-Oaaed OrganUatJons

and VvNdtablowar prelacUons

OTWH 3/24/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federai or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the'grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and ■
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
•indicated above.

Contractor Name: Greater Nashua Mental Health

Of.

I  i Wufrittr
\i MlJJWJOJWJJ- . . .

3/24/2023

Date • Naife^yftTtKia l whitakci
President and CEO

UPExhibit G

Conlractof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Greater Nashua Mental Health

—OoeuSlQnad by:

3/24/2023

^ L whitaker
Title:

President and CEO

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Conlractor Initials

OS

Environmental Tobacco SmoKe 3/24/2023'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL.FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE ■

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of.lndivldual-
Federal grants iequal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010."to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the'
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the avrard.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAiCS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award tide descriptive of the purpose of the funding action •
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of- the entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certificatiori:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of'Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name: Greater Nashua Mental Health

OoeuSlo««d by:

'3/24/2023 I
'oiti ^ ^ Nam^cynxn-^"'- whitaker

Title: President and CEO

Exhibit J - Certiflcallon Regardino Iho Federal Funding Contractor Inttiatav
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 3/24/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

•FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

KLQ5SMKH3Nn
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986?

^  NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

. If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:.

Name: Amount:. ,•

Name:, Amount; .

Name: . Amount:.

r-DS

ExhlbU J - Cortiflcalton Regarding the Federal Funding Contrador Inrtiabv ■ ■ -
Accounlabilily And-Transparency Ad (FFATA) CompliDnc© 3/24/2023
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 12, 2023 (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, Subsection 1.1, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block, 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$157,558

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.29, State Opioid
Response (SOR) Grant Standards, to read:

1.29. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

1.29.1. The Contractor must establish formal information sharing and referral agreements
with the Doorways in compliance with all applicable confidentiality laws, including
42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive payments for services funded with SOR
resources.

1.29.2. The Contractor must ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doonways are:

1.29.2.1". Completed and documented in the individual's file; and

1.29.2.2. Available to the Department as requestdd-ahd as needed for payment of
invoices for services provided through SOR-funded initiatives.

1.29.3. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SOR
funds, have a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder or
Stimulant Use Disorders (OUD/StimUD) or are at risk for such.

1.29.4. The Contractor must coordinate completion of Government Performance Results
Act (GPRA) initial interview and associated follow-ups at six (6) months and
discharge for individuals referenced previously.

1.29.5. The Contractor must submit a detailed plan within thirty (30) days of contract
effective date for ensuring GPRA completion for all clients receiving SOR funding.

1.29.6. The Contractor must ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase,
prescribe, or provide cannabis or for providing treatment using cannabis. The
Contractor must ensure:

1.29.6.1. Treatment in thisxontext includes the treatment of OUD/StimUOT^^

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
9/1/2023
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1.29.6.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits cannabis use for.the purposes of treating substance
use or mental health disorders.

1.29.6.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Memorandums of
Understanding that receive SOR funding.

1.29.7. The Contractor must ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals, utilizing SOR
funding.

1.29.8. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor must provide a test
strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation. The
Contractor must ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:

1.29.8.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

1.29.8.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

1.29.8.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

1.29.9. The Contractor must provide services as referenced to eligible individuals who:

1.29.9.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers, including the individual's
primary care provider;

1.29.9.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

1.29.9.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed
regardless of the class of medication.

1.29.10. The Contractor must ensure individuals who refuse to consent to information

sharing with the Doorways do not receive services utilizing SOR funding.

1.29.11. The Contractor must ensure individuals who rescind consent to information sharing
with the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR funding.

1.29.12. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded
Contractors, as requested and directed by the Department, to improve GPRA
collection.

1.29.13. The Contractor must comply with all appropriate Department, State of NH,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), and other
Federal terms, conditions, and requirements, and as amended, and must
collaborate with the Department to understand the aforesaid.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response (SOR) II
Grant, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assisted Listing Number (ALN) 93.788, as
awarded on:

1.1. 08/29/2022, FAIN H79TI083326; and

1.2. 09/30/2023, FAIN TBD, as anticipated pending receipt of the SAMHSA Notice of Award

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 5, to read:

5. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, SFY 2023 Budget through Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1, SFY 2025
Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 8, Subsection 8.1, Paragraph 8.1.3, Sub lE^raph

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials,
9/1/2023

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-03-A01 Page 2 of 5 Date
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8.1.3.1, by adding Parts 8.1.3.1.8 through 8.1.3.1.10, as follows:

8.1.3.1-8. Promotiohal items including, but not limited to, clothing and commemorative items
with added logos for distribution to clients and the community Including, but not limited
to, pens, mugs/cups, folders/folios, lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR
75.421(e)(3).

8.1.3.1.9. Direct payments to individuals to enter treatment or continue to participate in
prevention or treatment services. See 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b.

8.1.3.1.10. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug.

7. Add Exhibit C-3, Amendment #1, SPY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1, SPY 2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

9/1/2023'
RFP-2023-D8H-08-EFFEC-03-A01 Page 3 of 5 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and
effect. This Amendment shall be effective September 29, 2023, or upon Governor and Council approval,
whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/5/2023

Date

^OocuSlgned by:

50»io(ia**e.

Name:Katja s. fox

Title. Director

9/1/2023

Date

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
«  OocuS>gcnd by:

1wa01Q9Bd!WrO...
Name:Kerry Norton

Title:
Executive Director

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02-A01

A-S-1.2
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

A  OecuStgntd by:

9/5/2023 ■ ^

Date Name: Guanno

Title.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. .A-S-1.2

■RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02-A01 Page 5 of 5
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RFP-2023-DBH-06-EFFEC-03-A01 Exhibit C-3, Amendment #1

SFY2024 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Hppe on Haven H///, fnc.

Budget Request for: Contingency Management Program

Budget Period Septemt^er 30, 2023 through June 30. 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (If aoollcable) 5.7% across both budget periods for entire amendment total

Line Item . Program Cost • Funded by.DHHS

Budget Narrative
Explain speclTic line Item costs included

and their direct relationship to meeting
the objectives of this solicitation.

1. Salary & Wages $20,400

Anticipated staffing ■ Ciinicai Director wiii provide

"lOK IS9200) oversight of the program, develop

policies and procedures, meet weekly for

supervision, etc. approx. 4 hours per week;

Clinical Case Martager will utilize -20K ($11,200) of

her time to handle the daily operations of the

program, outreach and meet with clients, obtain

supplies, etc. approx. 8 hours per week.

2. Fringe Benefits $4,100 Fringe rate for above

3. Consultants $1,000
Consultant - program best practices, etc.

4, Equipment $1,500
Dedicated laptop/monitor/docking station for
program ,

5.(a) Supplies - Educational CM Rewards $7,500 Gift cards.'prizes, etc.

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $500 Gloves, disinfectant, quick cups, etc.

5.(c) Supplies-Pharmacy $500
OTC mods, first aid supplies, feminine hygiene

items, etc.

S.(d) Supplies • Medical $500 First aid, etc.

S.(e) Supplies Office $5,000

Printing, office supplies, etc. This will cover

office supplies used to promote the program,

e.g. racks to hold brochures, storage totes,

bins, pens, signage, copy paper, toner, etc.

6. Travel $800 Staff travel for program needs

7. Software $250 f4icrosoft license, etc.

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$3,500 Program materials; events, etc.

8. (b) Other • Education and Training $4,000 Staff/Client • CPR, Life Skills.etc.

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Occupancy $5,000
Storage, fridge/freezer for items that need to

be kept cold; portion of utilities, etc.

Telephone & Internet $979 Phone/internet

Postage $1,500
Postage to send out materials, e.g. flyers for
program events, specific offerings.

License

Limited English Services $300 interpreting svcs.

Insurance $2,620 Cost of insurance

9. Subcontractors/Agreements $2,500 Cost to hang shelving, signs,etc.

Total Direct Costs $62,449

Total Indirect Costs $3,557

TOTAL $66,006

9/1/2023

Page 2 of 3
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RFP-2023-DBH-0&-EFFEC-03-A01 Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1

SFY2025 Budget

New Hamp

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

shire Department of Health and Human Services

Hope on Haven Hill, inc.

Contingency Management Program

July 1, 2024 through September 29. 2024

5:7% across both budget periods for entire amendment total

Line ttem Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

Budget Narrative
Explain specific line item costs included

and their direct relationship to meeting the
objectives of this solicitation.

1. Salary & Wages $5,300

Anticipated staffing - Clinical Director will provide

"lOS (S2,350) oversight of the program, develop

policies and procedures, meet weekly for

supervision, etc. approx. 4 days per week; Clinical

Case Manager will utiiite ~20% {S2,884) of her time

to handle the daily operations of the program,

outreach and meet with clients, obtain supplies,

etc. approx. 8 hours per week.

2. Fringe Benefits $1,065 Fringe rate for.abovc

3. Consultants $500 Consultant - orosram best practices, etc.

4. Equipment $250 Dedicated laptop/monitor/docking station for

5.(a) Supplies - Educational CM Rewards $7,500 Gift cards, prizes, etc.

S.(b) Supplies-Lab $250 Gloves, disinfectant, quick cups, etc.

5.(c) Supplies-Pharmacy $100
ofc meds, first aid supplies, feminine hygiene
items, etc. •

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $100 First aid, etc.

5.(e) Supplies Office '$500

Printing, office supplies, etc. This will cover office

supplies used to promote the program, e.g. racks

to hold brochures, storage totes, bins, pens,

signagc, copy paper, toner, etc.

6. Travel $300 Staff travel for program needs

7, Software $200 Microsoft license, etc.

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications
$2,000 Program materials; events, etc.

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $300 Staff/Client ■ CPR, Life Skills,etc.

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Occupancy $2,000
Storage, fridge/freezer for items that need to

be kept cold; portion of utilities, etc.

Telephone & Intemei $250 Phone/internet

Postage $25

Postage to send out materials, e.g. flyers for
program events, specific offerings, .

Information on CMP, outreach/follow up, etc.

(Incentives will not be mailed.)

License

Limited English Sen/ices $75 Interpreting svcs.

insurance $101 Cost of insurance

9. Subcontractors/Agreements
*

Total Direct Costs $20,816

Total Indirect Costs $1,186

TOTAL $22,002

9/1/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HOPE ON HAVEN HILL INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 25, 2015. I further

certify' that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 735370

Certificate Number; 0005773219

Urn

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of May A.D; 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Michael J Murphy hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1! am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Hope on Haven Hill Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 14. 2023 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and votina

(Date) .

VOTED: That Kerry Norton Executive Director fmay list more than one person)
(NQirie and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Hope on Haven Hill Inc.' to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3.-I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of (he
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that It Is understood that the Slate of New Hampshire will rely on'^this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the positlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporaUon To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation In contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated^rein.

Dated: August 22. f
2023 Signature of El&ct^d Officer

Name :Mlchael J; Murphy
Title:

Treasurer

Rev. 03/24/20
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HOPEONH-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
/\C:ORC9'

DBEAUDOIN

DATE (UM/DDnrVYY)

8/22/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELV OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(8), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poIlcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the toims end conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsemenUs).

PRODUCER

Davis & Tovde Morrlll & Everett, Inc.
119 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

r-vc.tfo. Brt}: (603) 225-8611 ^ ho>:(6Q3) 225-7935

INSURERfSt AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICi

iNsuRfiRA:Selectlve Insurance Comoanv of America 12572

MSUREO

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
PO Box 1272

Rochester, NH 03886

MSURER B - Hfttflh Cart & Human Strvktt StH Inaurod Group

mSURFRC:

INSIIRFRD:

INSURERE 1

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDiriON OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

MSR
tTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
N«n

SUBR

WYD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

/MMrtlfVYYVYl
POLICY EXP

(MMfflfWYYVYI LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GfMERAL LIABIUTY

6 j 1 OCCUR 82578769-00 6/1/2023 8/1/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
1  1.000,000

CLAIMS.MAC DAMAGE TORENTEO
PRFMI.SFRfFii omirranr*!

s  1,000.000

MEO EXP (Anv ona ooraoni s  20,000

PERSONAL, a ADV INJURY
s  1.000,000

GEN\ AGGREGATE Uurr APPUES PER:

8r (_]loc
GENERALAOOREGATE g  3,000.000

X POLICY J| PRODUCTS. COMP/OP AGO
s  3,000,000

OTHER: s

A AUTOMOOILE UABLnY

82576789-00 8/1/2023 8/1/2024

COMBIN'ED SINGLE LIMH* s  1,000,000

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY IPar mraoni s
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

KIR^SONLY

X sc
AL
HEDULED
rros BODIl Y MJURY IPer acddortU t

X X Sff t

s

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAS

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE 82578789-00 8/1/2023 8/1/2024
FACH OCCURRENCE s  1,000,000

AORRFOATE
,  1,000,000

DEO X RETENTION 1 0 i

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE rTTl

lNJ
If yat. daaertba und«
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Iwtow

N/A

HCHS20222000001 1/1/2023 1/1/2024

PER 1 OTH.
RTATin-F 1 ER

F l. FACHACCIDF.NT
,  1,000,000

F.L. DKEASF. - FA EMPIOYFF
t  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POUCY UMIT
,  1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATfONS t LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUonal Rtmatio SchediPt, may ba attaehtd if mora apKa Is raqutrad}
"'Workers Compensation Information*"
3A Stale: NH

Volunteers are oxcludod from coverago.

state of NH • Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE .

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL

326 ROCHESTER HILL RD, ROCHESTER, NH

Mission: To provide a nurturing home environment to pregnant women with a

Substance Use Disorder who are in recovery, along with their children, for up to a

year postpartum.

Vision: By providing a safe home with comprehensive addiction treatment

services, family therapy, parenting classes, advancement in education and life

coaching we will support women who are homeless or imminently homeless in

their Recovery from addiction who pregnant or parenting. An enriched self-

esteem, confidence and a tool-belt full of life skills will promote independence and

sustained Sobriety.

Email: info@hopeonliavenhill.org

Facebook: https://vvww.facebook.coin/hopeonhavenhill

Website: www.hopeonhavenhill.org

Mailing Address: Hope on Haven Hill P.O. Box 1272, Rochester, NH 03867

Phone: 603-841-5353 or 603-948-1230



DocuSign Envelope ID: F483CA29-EBF8-4818-9356-C4FB70C6A0A4

(

HOPE ON

HAVEN HILL

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; F483CA29-EBFB-4818.9356.C4FB70C6A0A4

HOPE ON HAVEN HILU INC.

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

PAGE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditors* Report

Statements of Financial Position

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Statements of Functional Expenses

Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

1 -2

3-4

5-6

.7-8

9- 10

11- 16



DocuStgn Envelope ID: F483CA29.EBFB-4818-9356-C4FB70C6A0A4

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

October 14, 2022

To the Board of Directors

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
Rochester, New Hampshire

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (a nonproUt
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021,
and the related statements of activities and change in net assets, functional expenses, and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mope on Haven Hill, Inc. as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with audititig standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to
be independent of Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Hope on
Haven Hill, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issiicd.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance, about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion.. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards will always delect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misslateinents, including omissions, are
considered material if (here is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would infiucnce the judgment made by a reasonable user based oh the financial statements.

r
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In perfomnng an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal conu*ol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpo.se of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.'s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rea.sonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
pre.sentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that rai.se substantial doubt about Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.'s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We arc required to communicate with those charged wit^h governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and liming of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Certified Public AccoinUants
Stratham, Nov Hampshire
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30,

2022 202!

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Medical billing receivable

Grant receivable

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings

Land

Equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Leasehold improvements

Construction in progress

Less Accumulated depreciation

Total Property and Equipment. Net

OTHER ASSETS

Ca.sh, board designated
Cash, restricted

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

S  202,038 $ 177,500

589.093 83,032

- 200.000

7,230 778

798,361 461,310

1,077,168 1,077,168

109,917 109,917

37,725 37,725

37.767 37,767

28,318 28,318

171,555 171,5.55

364,703 ■ -

1,827,153 1,462,450

141.094 94,026

1,686,059 1,368,424

450,000 450,000

2,485,705 1,000,000

2,935,705 1,450,000

$  5,420,125 S 3,279,734

See Notes to Financial Statements

'3'



DocuSign Envelope ID; F483CA29-EBFB-4818-9356.C4FB70C6A0A4

V

HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30,

2022 2021

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounis payable
Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Note payable, net of current portion
PPP loan

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor re.strictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

$  159,639 S 20,620

47,112 28,228

32,131 31.893

238,882 80,741

31,849.

- 172,300

204,149

238,882 284.890

2,695,538 1,794,844

2,485,705 1,200,000

5,181,243 2,994,844

$  5,420,125 $ 3,279,734

See Noies to Financial Siaicmcnis

-4-
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILU INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

Net Asscis

Without Donor

Restrictions

Net Assets

With Donor

Restrictions Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Donations

Grants

PPP loan

Employee Retention Tax Credit

insurance rcimburscnienl revenue

Fundraising

Rental income

Donated stock

In-kind donations

Other iiicomc

Interest income

Gain (loss) on disposal of donated stock

Net assets released from restrictions

S  407.82!

677,599

172.300

108,225

648.176

245

20,164

17,714

5,356
' 4,155
4,525

(1,609)

564,703

S  - S

(564,703)

407,821

677,599

172.300

108,225

648,176

245

20,164

17,714

5.356

4,155

4,525

(1,609)

Total Support and Revenue 2,629,374 (564,703) 2,064.671

EXPENSES

Program Services

Supporting Scr\'iccs:
Management and general

Fundraising

1,220,1 11

344,693

108,438

- 1,220,1 11

344,693

108,438

Total Supporting Services 453,131 453,131

Total Expenses 1.673.242 1.673,242

Changes in Net Assets from operations 956,132 (564,703) 391,429

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Capital campaign donations
Capital campaign expenses .  (55,438)

1,850,408 1,850,408

(55.438)

Total Other Income (Expense) (55.438) 1.850,408 1,794.970

Changes in Net Assets 900,694 1.285,705 2,186,^39

NET ASSETS. Beginning of Year 1,794,844 1.200,000 2,994,844

NET ASSETS, End of Year S  2,695,538 $  2.485,705 S 5,181,243

See: S'oles to Financial Sialeincrus

-5-



DocuSign Envelope ID: F483CA29-EBFB-4818-9356-C4FB70C6A0A4

HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Net Assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

Net Assets

With Donor

Restrictions Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Donations

Grants

PPP loan

Insurance reimbursement revenue

Fundraising

Rental income

Other income

Interest income

Gain (loss) on disposal of property and equipntcnt
Net assets released from restrictions

S  167,840

539.328

186,600

475,430

550

21,309
5,014

1,530

(7.314)

29,471

s ■ - $

200,000

(29,471)

167,840

739.328

186,600

475,430

550

21,309
5,014

1,530

(7,314)

Total Support and Revenue 1,419,758 170,529 1,590,287

EXPENSES

Program Services

Supporting Services:

Management and general

Fundraising

1,169,015

279,192

87,276

- 1,169,015

279,192

87,276

Total Supporting Ser\'ices 366,468 366,468

Total Expenses 1,535,483 1,535,483

Changes in Net Assets frotn operations (115,725) 170,529 54,804

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Capital campaign donations
Capital campaign expenses (42,251)

1,000,000 1,000,000

(42,251)

Total Other Income (Expense) (42,251) 1,000,000 957,749

Changes in Net Assets (157,976) 1,170,529 I,0i2,553

NET ASSETS. Beginning of Year 1,952,820 29,471 1,982,291

NET ASSETS, End of Year S  1,794,844 S  1,200,000 S 2,994.844

See Noies to FiiuinciaJ Siotcnieiiis

■ 6-
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Program

Services

Management

and General Fundraising Total

Salaries and wages S  740,632 $  167,877 $  79,001 $  987,510

Professional fees 66.751 47,657 4,616 1 19,024

Payroll taxes 63,545 14,404 6,778 84,727

Employee benefits 60,049 13,611 6,405 80,065

GfTice expense 36,183 34,344 3,985 74,512

Repair and maintenance 42,664 19,941 317 62,922

Direct services 51,025 - - 51,025

Depreciation 42,361 2,353 2,353 47,067

Rent .20,202 20.202 - 40,404

Insurance 19.454 7,839 807 28,100

Utilities 22,298 5,499 - 27,797

Memberships and registrations 17,149 1,120 573 -  . ->t^.8,842

Telephone and internet 8,278 4,139 ■  1,380 • - 4.3,797

Website 6,205 -  3,103 1,034 •  '•'10,342
Auto expenses 7,445 - . " " 7.445
Taxes' >.*■ 6,572 - - 6.572
Advertising 3,459 - - 3,459
Dues and subscriptions 2,379 132 132 2,643
Meals and eritertainment 218 2,242 - 2,460
Miscellaneous expenses 1,487 74 - 1,561
Fundraising • • 928 928

Travel 583 44 102 729

Interest expense 697 - - 697

Payroll service charges 249 56 27 332

Licenses and pcnnits 226 56 - 282

$  1,220,1 11 $  344,693 S  108,438 S 1,673,242

See Notes to Financial Sialcwcnis

■ 7-
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program

Services

Management

and General Fnndraising Total

Salaries and wages S  58^,928 $  133,717 • $ 62,926 S  786,571
Office expense 223,928 33,218 3,903 261,049
Professional fees 60,652 29,685 3,201 93,538
Employee benefits 53,048 12,024 5,658 70,730
PajToll taxes 46,973 10,647 .  5,010 62,630
Repair and maintenance 34,66! 14,746 586 49,993
Rent 21,399 21,399 - .  42,798
Insurance 26,360 8,756 1,783 36,899
Depreciation 31,465 1,748 1,748 34,961
Direct services 33,195 - 33,195
Utilities 13,112 3,278 - 16,390
Telephone and internet 7,776 3,888 1,296 12,960
Memberships and registrations 10,784 660 673 12,117
Miscellaneous expenses 4,326 4,572 - 8,898
Auto expenses 2,608 - - 2,608
Payroll service charges .  1,789 405 191 2,385
Dues and subscriptions 1,850 103. 103 2,056
Ta.xes 1,628 - - 1,628
Travel 1,132 85 198 1,415
Meals and entertaiiuncnt 1,004 117 . 1,121
Interest expense 81 1 - . 81 1

Licenses and permits 586 144 - 730

. $ 1,169,015 S  279,192 S 87,276 S 1,535,483

Sec Moles to Financial Staienieius

-8-
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Hort: ON HAVEN hill, inc.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

VEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES;

Change in net assets $  2,186,399 S 1,012,553

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets (o net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 47,067 34,961

Forgiveness of PPP loan (172,300) (186,600)

Donated stock (17,714) -

(Gain) loss on donated stock 1,609 -

(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment - 7,314

Changes in assets and liabilities that used (provided) cash:

Medical billing receivable (506,061) (151,697)

Grant receivable 200,000 -

Other current assets (6,452) (778)

Accounts payable 139,019 16,093

Accrued expenses 18,884 (31,458)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,890,451 700,388

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment . 1,500

Proceeds from sale of investments 16,105 -

Purchase of property and equipment (364,702) (559,518)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (348,597) (558,018)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

PPP loan 172,300

Payments on long-term debt (31,61 1) (31,496)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (31,61 1) 140,804

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,510,243 283,174

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR I,627;500 1,344.326

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR S  3,137,743 $ 1,627,500

CASH SUMMARY

Cash S  202,038 S 177,500

Cash, board designated 450,000 450,000

Cash, restricted 2,485,705 1,000,000

Total Cash S  3,137,743

See A'o/e.v lo Financial Siaieincnls

■9-

1,627,500
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

2022 2021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Interest expense S 697 S

There was no cash paid during 2022 and 2021 for laxc.s on inconie,

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

There were no noncash investing and financing activities for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

.See h'oias 10 Financial Siaienienis

-W-
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Note I - Sumnian' ofSiunificantAccountine Policies

Nature of Activities - Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (The Organization) was organized November 25, 2015. The Organization is
a level 3.1 and 3.5 substance use treatment facility sen'ing homeless, pregnant and newly parenting mothers who are in
recovery. The Organization was established to provide a nurturing, therapeutic home environmejit for women with substance
use disorder who are seeking recovery, and their children. The organization also provides ASAM LOG I.O outpatient
counseling ser\'ices through individual and group counseling, as well as ASAM LOG 2.1 Intensive Outpatient Program for
individuals with substance use disorder.

In December 2016, the Organization opened an eight-bed residential facility, which provides a safe home with
comprehensive addiction treatment services, including group and individual therapy, 12-step programs, smoking cessation
sctninars, family therapy, parenting classes, educational, job, and life coaching, and case management, to support women and
their families in their recover)' from addiction.

In August 2019, the Organization opened a second facility, Abi's Place, an eight-room transitional recovery house, for
mothers in recovery and their children. Abi's Place offers women who have completed a residential program the opportunity
to live in a transitional setting that offers assistance with employment, childcarc, and continued recover)' support.

The Organization opened a new multipurpose building "'the Red Barn" on the residential property in 2021, which has allowed
for expanded residential programming activities such as yoga, art, and group therapy. Additionally, the Organization's
Intensive Out Patient (lOP) program grew in late 2020/carly 2021, requiring the need to lease additional space for expanded
outpatient programming.

In the summer of 2021, the Organization kicked off a major capital campaign in order to build a new health and wellness
center on property It already owns adjacent to Abi's Place, the recovery house located in Rochester, NH. The Organization
expects to break ground on this new building in early 2023. The Organization's administrative offices and outpatient
.services will be relocated to the new center, which will also allow the Organization to expand its childcare olTerings, open a
thrift shop, and operate a demonstration kitchen for increasing clients' skills.

Finally, the Organization purchased.a duplex properly adjacent to Abi's Place, on the side opposite the proposed location for
the new health and wellness center, for the purpose of rehabbing it and obtaining NH Section 8 housing certification, io
further assist mothers in recovery and their children with housing.

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting,
and accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation - The Organization follows the provisions of FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14,
Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profil Entities. In accordance with these provisions, the Organization is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets: net assets
without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on tlie existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions, accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net a.sseis that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

, Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 1) may or will be met either
by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time or 2) they be maintained pcnnanently by the Organization.

Cash and Gash Equivalents - For purposes of the Slatement of Ga.sh Flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and have a maturity of three months or less
when acquired to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains cash balances at several banks. From time to time during
the yeai's ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Organization's bank account balances may have exceeded federally insured
limits. Management has cValua|ed this risk and considers it to be a npnnal busiiiess risk.

-Jl-
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Note 1 - Summary ofSieitiflcanl Accounriuc Policies (continued)

Doriaied Assets - Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their estimated

fair values at the date of donation. Donations of inventory items held for resale arc recognized when sold because the
Organization does not have an objective measurement for determining fair value.

Donated Services - Donated ser\-ices are reflected in the financial statements at the fair value of.the ser\'i.ces received only if
the service.s (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills that are provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclo.sures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Tax Status - The Organization is exempt from federal and state income taxes uiider Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, donations to the Organization qualify for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1)(A), and the Organization has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section
509(a)(2).

The federal infonnational tax return of the Organization is subject to examination, generally for three years after the returns
are filed.

Grants and Medical Billing Receivables - Grants and medical billing receivable are stated at the amount management expects
to collect from outstanding balances. Management considers medical billing receivable to be delinquent based on the date of
unpaid invoices. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are
still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts arc written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a reduction to medical billing receivable. There was ho allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2022
and 2021. The Organization does not require collateral when extending credit.

Property and Equipment ■ Property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which is 5 to 30 years and a value over
$1,000. Nonnal repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Upon sale or retirement of depreciable assets, lite related
cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts. Any gain'or loss on the sale or retirement is recognized in
current operations. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use, and contributions of cash that must be used to
acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those
donated assets must be maintained, the Organization repons expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired
assets are placed in ser\'ice as instructed by the dojiors. The Organization reclassifies net assets with restrictions to net assets
without restrictions at that time.

Contributions - Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenue when the underlying promises are received by the
Organization. Gifts of cash and other assets arc reported as net assets with restrictions if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated lime
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with restrictions are reclassified to net assets without
restrictions and reported in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets as net assets released from restrictions.
Restricted contributions which are both received and released within the same year are recorded as net assets without
restrictions

-12'
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Note I - Summary ofSicnificant Accountine PoUcies (continued)

Funcliona! Allocation of Expenses - The expenses of providing various program and supporting ser\'ices have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain expenses have been allocated among the
programs and supporting ser\'iccs benefited. Allocations may be direct or indirect according to the type of expense incurred.
The expenses that have been allocated include salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits which have been allocated based
on an estimation of time and effort and professional fees, repairs and maintenance, rent, utilities, insurance, office expenses,
telephone and internet and memberships and registrations which have been allocated based on an estimation of usage and
consumption.

Advertising Costs - The Organization's policy is to expense advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense
totaled $3,459 for the year ended June 30, 2022^ There was no advertising expense for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Note 2 - Line of Credit

In January 2017 the Organization obtained a line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $24,999. In July 2017
the amount was increased to $50,000. The line bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.50% with a floor of
5.25%. The interest rate was 6.25% and 5.25% at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The line is secured by all personal
property of the Organizatioti. There was.no interest expense paid on the line during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Note 3 - Note Payable

The following summarizes the Organization's long-tenn debt obligations as of June 30,:

Tcnns Security 2022 2021

Term loan with the New Hampshire
Health and Education Facilities

Authority. Monthly pa>'ments of
principal and interest of $2,692. The
loan has a fixed interest t^aie of 1.00%

and matures in March 2023. Building $ 32.131 $ 63.742

Total Debt 32,131 63,742

Less: current portion 32.131 31.893

$  ; $ _1L8_49

Interest expense under this debt agreement amounted to $697 and $81 1 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Future minimum principal payments under the agreement are as follows at June 30,:

2023 S 32,131

- 13'
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Note 4 - Restrictions and Limitations ofNet Asset Balances

Net assets with restrictions consisted of the following at June 30,: <

20.22 2021 .

Capital campaign - facility expansion $ 2,485,705 S 1,000,000
Grant receivable : 200.000

Total not Assets with Restrictions $

The sources of net assets rclca.sed from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpo.ses or by
occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by donors were as follows for the years ended June 30,:

2022 2021

Playscapes $ - $ 19,471
Capital campaign - facility e.xpansion 364,703
Grant receivable 200,000

Transportation : 10.000

Total Net Assets Released from Restrictions $ 564.703 $ 29.471

Net assets without donor restrictions consisted of the following at June 30,:

2022 2021

Board Designated:
Facilities $  225,000 $ 225,000

Capita) campaign 225.000 225.000

Total Board Designated 450,000 450,000

Undesignated 2.245.538 1.344.844

Total Net Assets Without Restrictions j  2.695.538 S im&M

Note 5 - Leases

The Organization entered into a new lease for an office space location in September 2019. The lease commenced on
November 1, 2019 and calls for monthly rent of $3,336. The lease tenninates in October 2022 and the Organization has the
option to extend for two additional lenns of one year each. The base rent of the lease increases annually by 2.00% and the
first increase is scheduled for November 2020. Total rent paid uiider this lease was $40,032 for the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021. Future rental payments under this lease will be $13,884 in 2023.

- 14-
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Note 6 - Retirement Plan

In January 2019 ihe Organization adopted a Simple IRA plan. All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan.
The Orgajiizalioirs matching contributions under this plan totaled $16,016 and SI 1,436 for the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021, respectively.

Note 7 -Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization derived approximately 24% and 32% of its operating revenue and support from a government agency for
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Additionally, otte donor accounted for 55% of restricted other income
for the year ended June 30, 2022, and another donor accounted for 100% of restricted other income, for the year ended June
30,2021.

Note 8 ' Liquidity' and Avdilahilitv of Resources

The Organization has the following financial assets available within one year of the balance sheet date to meet cash needs for
general expenditure:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 202,038
Medical billing receivable 589.093

Total $ 2Rl.i3I

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual resttictions that make them unavailable for general
expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date. As part of the Organization's liquidit)' management, it has a policy to
structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.

Note 9 - Environmental Remediation

In late September 2020, the Organization was made aware of potential lead contamination issue at its residential treaunent
center. The Organization completed a formal risk assessment in October 2020. The results of the risk a.sse.ssment indicated a
limited number of windows, doors and a pattiry cabinet contained lead paint. The Organization closed the residential
treatment center and retained a local vendor to complete the facility remediation. The Organization has invested
approximately $137,345 to remediate the facility. Additional tests were conducted in late November, December, and mid-
Januar)' to confirm the lead abatement efforts had been successful. The residential treatment center was opened on January
20,2021.

Note 10- Purchase Commitment

In 2022 the Organization entered into a contract for the construction of a new facility. The total cost of the project is
estimated at $3,200,000. The total amount paid under iltis contract was $274,837 for the year ended June 30, 2022.

-15-
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

Note 11 - PPP Loans and Other COVID Reiated Activity

Starting in March 2020, local, U.S., and world governments have encouraged seif-isolaiion to curtail the spread of the global
pandemic, coronavirus disease (COVID-19), bymandating the ieniporar>' shut-down of business in many sectors and
imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group meetings. Most sectors arc experiencing disruption to
busine.ss operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement, volatility in investment
returns, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its
potential economic ramifications, and any govemment actions to mitigate them. Accordingly, while management cannot
quantify the financial and other impacts to the Organization as of October 14, 2022, management believes that a material
impact on the Organization's position and results of future operations is reasonably possible.

The U.S. government has responded with several phases of relief legislation as a response to the COVID-19 outbreak. The
initial legislation was enacted into law on March 27, 2020, called the Coronavirus Aid. Relief, and Economic Security Act
(CARES Act) and later by the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021, to address the economic impact of the COVID-19
outbreak. The CARES Act, among other things, I) authorizes emergency loans to distressed businesses by establishing, and
providing funding for. forgivable bridge loans, 2) provides additional funding for grants and technical assistance, 3) delays
due dates for employer payroll taxes and estimated lax payments for organizations, and 4) revises provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code (or IRC if defined elsewhere), including those related to losses, charitable deductions, and business interest.
The Consolidated Appropriations- Act of 2021 continued or expanded many of the CARES Act initiatives. The Organization
applied for and received a loan of $186,600 under the CARES Act. The expenditure of the proceeds Is subject to certain
terms and conditions which may result in the loan being partially or fully forgiven. The Organization applied for full
forgiveness which was granted in February 2021. The loan has met the criteria for inclusion in income as of June 30, 2021.
The Organization received a second loan of $172,300 in April 2021. The Organization applied for and received full
forgiveness in October 2021. The. loan has met the criteria for inclusion in income as of June 30, 2022.

The Organization applied for and received $108,225 in Employee Retention Tax Credits under the CARES Act.

Note 12 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through October 14, 2022 which is tlie date the financial statements
were available to be issued. There there were no subsequent events that were material to the financial statements at October
14,2022.

- 16-
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Board of tMrectors

As of November 2022

Susan Dalgle - Chair of Board

Community Activist/Educator
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Term Ending: 9/2026

Amanda Davfs-^acon - VIca Chair

Owner of Sawl Strategies
Newfleids, NH 03856

Term ending: 6/2028

Dr. Rebecca Bananski - Secretary

Physician, Garrison Women's Health
Wentworth Douglass Hospital
Dover, NH 03820

erm Ending: 9/2026

Sarah Undres, Esq.

Attorney

Primmer, Piper, Eggleston & Cramer PC
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Term ending: 12/2022

Michael Murphy, CPA - Treasurer
Certified Public Accountant/Partner
Murphy, Powers & Wilson, P.C
Hampton, NH 03842

Term ending: 12/2023
Joseph Hannon, MD

Volunteer, Community Leader, Politician
Lee, NH 03824

ing 12 2022erm en

Jiliian Mulrooney
Human Resources Manager

NH Public Defender Program
Concord, NH 03301

Term Ing 10 2024en

Kathleen Routhler, RN
Assistant Nurse Manager
WDM Women's and Children's Unit

Wentworti) Douglass Hospital
Dover. NH 03820

Elitabeth Torrance, AVP, Community Relations and
Social Responsibility Manager
Kennebunk Savings Bank

Kennebunk ME, 04043

Term ending: 12/2022

Nick Couturier

President/Principal Broker
New Space Real Estate
Dover. NH 03820

Term ending: 9/2026 Term ending: 02/2025

P.O. Box 1272, RoohMtcr, NH 03866 (603) 841-5353 • Fax: (603) 841-5585 www.hopccmhavenhin.org
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MBCHAELA

BULLAMORE

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Hardworking Studant working on Socia Wori< degree and enthusiastic aiJout learning flold inside and out
Pursues opportunities to learn new sWlLs and contribute to group success. Offers strong admlnlstraUve,
relatlonshlp-bullding and problem-solving aWlllies.

SKILLS

• HospllaUtyand

accommodation

• Planning

• Multitasking

• Facility safety

• Time management

• Scheduling

Dally reporting

Critical thinking

EXPERIENCE

^  August 2017-June 2019
Whlrtyglgs Toy Shop j Exeter, NH

• Balanced cash drawer at beginning and end of each shift

• Engaged with customers while completing cash register transactions.

• Maintained clean, organized, and well-stocked checkout areas,

• Stocked store shelves and end-caps with merchandise.

• Provided Information to customers on products or servlcea

• Fixed checkout merchandise displays with continuous resets during down periods.

• Maintained accurate register totals by carefully counting and securing cash.

• Recorded dally transactions precisely to avoid errors and keep logs accurate.

Housing support Juno 2020 - My 2020
Waypolnt | Dover, NH

• Maintained case notes In tracking system and complete records on each participant admitted to housing
assistance program.

• Coordinated room checks and Inspections

• Helped with TANF and food stamp paperwork

• Maintained a health and safe environment for the cUents.

• Completed client paperwork and progress notes.

• Helped keep the houso dean and organized chonss among the clients.

September2020-Current
Haydens Sports f Durham, NH
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• Maintained dean, organized, and well-stocked checkout areas.

■ Engaged with customers while completing cash register transactions.

• Stocked store shelves and end-caps with merchandise;

• Provided infbmnation to customere on products or services.
• Gave customers information about upcoming promoUons and available items.
• Assisted with price markdowns and merchandise changes on shelves, .
• Approached and solved problems with Inltlalfve and sound judgment
• Discussed promotions and special offers to customers to Increase sales.
• Assembled online order pickups and loaded purchases In vehicles.

• Prevented losses b/watching for suspicious behavior.
. Enhanced shopping experiences, directing or escorting to product locations on sales ftoor,
• Fixed checkout merchandise displays with continuous resets during down periods,
• Monitored checkout stations for adequate cash availability.
. Maintained accurate register totals by carefuUy counting and securing cash.
• Covered mulUple store areas by cross-training In different roles.

. Promoted customer satisftctlon by supporting merchandise setecUorx returns, and exchanges,

EDUCATION

Exeter High School, Exeter, NH
Student of the month

Social Work and Justice Studies Minor

University of New Hampshire. Durham, NH
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Beth 0*Dell, MS, LCMHC, MLADC, LCPC, NCC, CCTP

liceD8e(8)
licensed dinlcol Mental Health Covmseloi (NH 2U8]

Board of Mental Health Pmcttce

Master Licensed Aloohol and Drug Connselor (NH 1212)
NBBoard qfLicensing far Alcohol and Other Drug Counselors

Ucensed Clinical Professional Counselor (MB CC6570)
MS Board of Counseling FrofesstonaJs JJoensure

National Certified Counselor

National Board for Certified Counselors

Certified Clinical Thuma Professional
Evergreen Certlficadons

Renewal Date: 2/26/2023

Renewal Date: 6/30/2023

Renewal Dote; 2/29/2024

Renewal Date: August 2023

Renewal Date: 9/9/2023

Education

MS. Walden University, 2016

M.S._ Wilmington Universily,-2013

B.S, Wamington University, 2005

Human Services (Policy, Analysis & Planning)

Community Counseling

Psychology

Mity 2019-Pre5ent

Bxpetienco
Clinical Director

Hope on Haven Hill, Rochester, NH
Provides cliuioal coordination and direction to all Hope on Haven Hill (HHH) staf£ looming
development for olinical and support ataff, Responsible for oversight of all clinical program
implementation and changes, and responsible for ensuring that ah clinical Btafffrom all programs
receive clinical supervision. Meet with members of the Clinical Team for weekly ono>on-one
supervision, and fedlitato group sipervision weekly for all staff. Works directly with the
Executive Director and Director ofOperations to ensure that polioles and piocedures are
followed, oommunlcBtion is maintained, and reporting lequiromcnls are mot with all funding and
state agofwies. Utilize the Anieifean Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Assessment and
dimensions to ensure access to appropriate levels of care for all clients Booking treatment
OrerseeB quality assurance to ensure accurate docomentntlon is recorded in client records,
trauma-responsive oaro is provided, throughout the oontluuum of care provided byHHE
Facilitate olinical groups (Relapse Prevention, CBT, DBT, Anger Managemont, Seeking SafotyX
individual substance use, and mental health counseling and crisis support.

AMt ACT Clinician

Coater for Life Management, Deny, NH
CUmoal Supervisor: Hoathor Crowell, LCMHC, MLADC, LCS

October 2016-May 2019
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Betfa 0*Da.U MS, LCMHC, MLADC, LCPC, NCC, CCTP

Work In ooordlnotloa wife fee Assertive Community Trcatment (ACT) Team to provide
integrated services to individuais wife severe, persistent mental Illness. Provide leadership,

and mentoring to badioloMevei staff on the ACribam. Provide clinical services witlijjQ
tho community and o^ce setting to individuals receiving treatmeart on fee ACT Iham, as well as
fUnotiootal support' services and case management as needed. Provide mental health aod
substance abuse troatmNit (iodivddnal and group), utilizing Cognitive Behavior Tharapy,
DlaleGtioal Behavior Therapy, Motivational Interviewing techniques wlfein the therapeutic
setting, and wife respect to client stage of change. Provide consuitation to fee Substance Use
DJsoider (SUD) pilot team as fee SUD group leader for clients during weekly SUD Team
meetings. Devdop and implement a Yoga for Mental Health group whhm fee adult department
Assess for crislB, provide stabilization care as needed, and provide on-cali services. Work closely
with Emergency Services to coordinate voluntary and/or involuntary emergency admission to
hospital for inpatlent psychiatric care. Attended all ACT Team meetings, as well as clinical staff
meetings and training as required.

SAPR Support S^eciatist August 2013-S^t8mbcr 2016
Sexual Assault Prevention and Ue^nse (SAFR)
Portsmouth Hav^ Shipyard, Kittery, MB
Facilitate propcur implementation of SAPR Pi-ogram requirements per Nnvy and Department of
Defense iostructloD, policy, and guidance in coUaborsCion wife the Sexual Assault Response
Coordiufltor (SARC). Aff^t in screening sailors for volunteer service as Viotim Advocates.
Deveiop, provide, and manage sexual assault (raining and prevention tpols to nulitory and
oiviiiaa personnel on base and (hroughout fee area of responsfbiU^ (Maine, New Han^shire,
Vermont, and north^n Massaohusotte). Coordinate monfely case tnRnagoment group meetings on
behalf of SARC and installation leadership. Coordinate the SAPR Watch Bill (on-o^ schedule)
for Unit Victim Advocates (UVA), and provide mentorship, continuing education, and assistance
wife oertification/D-SAACP renewal packages. Additional icsponsibiiitles include ensuring
sailors and civilians are rofoned to appropriate offices and resources, to Inchide referrals to
treatment pi^ograms for individuals, families, and groups needing assistance with family
problems and issues, and sexual assault support; woridng in coUaboration wife the partner
programs in the developm^t and Implementation of outreadi/prevention.

Domestic }7olence Adyocaie/DVLiaison August 20U-July 2013
SAFE Program of People's Place, Mllford, DB
Supervison Maroey Rezao, LCS W, DVS
Worked independently to provide domestic violence sorvices and support as the Liaison for fee
State of Delaware DMsion ofFamily Services (BCent County). During feis time, earned
qualification as a Domestic Violence Specialist ferou^ fee Dotaware CooUtion Against

. Domestic Vlolenco ttrtougli work and cduoalion experience. Provided trauma-informed advocacy
to domestic violence victims/survivors In tho coramunity, ossistlug victims in accessing support
sorvices and resources through other community agencies available to feem, and navigated
victims tlirou^ the legal process so may better understand court proceedings, secure a
Protection From Abuse (PFA) Orders, and oooess legal services available to feem. Referrals
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Beth CVDell, MS, LCMHC, MLADC, LCPC, NCC, CXTTP

Included: Victim Condensation AsfilstQucc Program, Legal Aid, Family Court, (PFA) Orders,
Public Housing, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families and Food Stamps flirou^ the
Department of Health and Sooial Services, and more. Additional responsibilities included:
aorcening applicants for job hiring, as directed by Program Manager, to fill vacancies, and assist
in the interview process, as needed.

Counsding Intern May 2012-April 2013
Aquda of DB, Itio., Georgetown, DE
Site Supervisor: April Lathbmy, LCSW, CCDP-D
Faculty Supervisor: Mary Vaughn, PsyJD,
Group Supervisor: Doris Lauokner, PsyD.
Explained and conducted assessments and mental health evaluations to determine client
diagnoses based on DSM criteria and appropriate level of treatment. Created narrative reports
and treatment plans based on assessments of clients and ono-on-oiio Interviews. Provided
on&<)n-ono counseling and fiimily therapy to adolescents in Outpatient and Day Treatment
settings, and conduoted group therapy In Day Treatment program. Completed lOO-hour
Praoticum, 600-hour Internship.

Case Manager August 2010-Augu8t 2011
SAFE Program of Peopie^s Place, Mllford, DB
Supervisor; MarcoyRezao, LCSW, DVS
Provided trauma-informed case management to women In domestic violence shelters and the
community to assist with budgeting, employment, seeking permanont residency, obtaining
identifioatlon, and otiier services as needed. Assisted as a team member in q
federoUy-fundod grant and its monetary disbursement among domestic violence survivors in
emergency shelters and in ftie community. Developed and Implomentod worbhops for women in
shelter to promote independence and empowerment.

DUIEvaluator October 2009-August 2010
SodaC DE, Inc., Wilmington, DE
Conducted evaluations ofDUI offenders' substance abuse and dependence in Kent and Sussex
County, Delaware. This evaluation determined the appropriate level of treatment for offendere, as
required by the State of Delaware. Created nairativo jepoits based on assessment and ono-on-one
interviews. Independently managed the daily notlvities of the Kent and Sussex County offices,
and reconciled and deposited money daily.

■n-fltalng
Early Childhood & Family Mental Health Cortlfioation, Advanced RoucwaJ: 11/7/2023
m DHHS Child Development Bureau and New Hampshire Association for Infant Menial Health

200-hour Yoga Tbaoher Training February 2018
Yoga Lfe Institute Nil, Exeter NH
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Bctti Oa)cU, MS, LCMHC, MLADC, LCPC, NCC, CCtP

DBT Skills TVaining for BordofUno Personality DlsoKlot April 201.7
MentalHeaJih Center of Oreater Manchester

Danger Asisessment CertificatioQ September 2011
Danger Assessment Tratning Program; John Hopkins School o/Hurstng
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Contractor Name

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Michaela Bullamore Case Manager/Data Coord. 14,084

BethO'Dell Clinical Director 11,550

-



Lori A. Weaver

ioterin CoBtmissloocr

Kilja S. Fox
Director
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STATE OF NEW HAMFSHFRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVrsrON FOR beha vioral heal th

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-^52-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603.271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

13

March 15. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into contracts with the Contractors listed below in an amount not to exceed $275,806 to
provide behavioral-based intervention. Contingency Management programming, for individuals
with a diagnosed Opioid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder, with the option to renew for up to four (4)
additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through September 29, 2023.
100% Federal Funds.

Cohtractor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Contract Amount

Blue Heron Neurofeedback and
Counseling, LLC

362670 Statewide $152,251

Community Council of Nashua, N.H.

d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

154112-

B001
Statewide $54,005

Hope oh Haven Hill, Inc.
275119^

B001
Statewide $69,550

Total: $275,806

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are
anticipated to be available for State Fiscal Year 2024, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to implement evidence- and behavioral-based intervention
programs, known as a Contingency Management. Contingency Management Programs have
been shown to be effective in reducing cravings, non-prescribed drug use, and risky behaviors,
while increasing treatment attendance and prescribed medication adherence; for individuals with
a clinically diagnosed Stimulant or Opioid Use Disorder.

Services identified, in these agreements will be provided in conjunction with existing
evidence-based outpatient and intensive-outpatient substance use disorder treatment services.

The Dtporlnxem ofHeatlh and Human Seroices'Mitsion it to join communiliet and fomiliet
in providing opportunities for ciluens to achieve Ixeatlh and independence.



Hia Excellency. Governor Chrtatopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

allowing NH to expand and increase accessibility to, and foster engagement wHh. treatment
programming. Contingency Management Programming offers enhancements that allow clinicians
to customize and Individualize treatment goals and assist individuals to Identify and modify their
behaviors, as related to their substance use. writh the goal of achieving and sustaining recovery

Approximately 170 Individuals will be served, across all three (3) Contractors, through
September 29. 2023.

Individuals participating In Contingency Management Programming will receive positive
reinforcement for achieving identified treatment goals including; attendance at treatment
sessions, adherence to prescribed medications for Opioid Use Disorder and/or other health
condition's, as applicable, and for evidence of positive behavioral change through the provision of
stimulant- and/or opioid-negative urine specimens. Clinicians w\\\ address ambivalence and
discuss and problem solve barriers to program attendance and participation with individuals who
do not achieve identified treatment goals. Clinicians will offer support and encouragement to
continue taking positive steps toward, and engaging in. their recovery efforts and will assist
indivlduajs in connecting with community-based services to support their treatment and recovery
efforts, as needed.

The Department will monitor services through regularly scheduled meetings and the
review of monthly aggregate and de-identified data and aftercare survey reports to ensure project
deliverables and outcomes are being met.

The Department^ selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from December 6,
2022 through January 9. 2023. The Department received four (4) responses that were reviewed
and scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is attached.

■ As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request individuals with stimulant
andfor opioid use disorder will not have access to this supplementary and powerful, evidence-
based intervention which may result in lower treatment retention and engagement rates,
decreased abstinence, and a decline in overall recovery experiences.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number CFDA 93.788. FAIN H79TI083326
In the even! that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds

will not be requested to support this program.
Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEEt

0S-BM2-»WSt0-704O0000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT,
BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT
100% F«<l«r«l FunO», _% Gtntnl FunO». _% Othar Fund* (Nama of Sourca)

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV.

State Fiscal Year Clasa / Account Clasa Title Job Number - Current Amount
Increese

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 074-500589 Wel/are Assistance 92057053 $0.00 $93,305.00 $93,305.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance

Sub Total

92057053 $0.00

$0.00

$S8.04$.00

$152,251.00

$58,046.00

$152,251.00

Vendor Name: Greater Naahua Mental Health
Vendor# 1&41t2<BOOl

Stata Fbeal Veer

2023

_2&2i.

Class / Account

074-500589

074.500589

Ctftss TiHe

WelfafeAjsisiante

Wellare Assistance

Sub Total

> Numtter

87057053

Current Amount

50.00

80 00

8000

Increase

838 094.00

854.005.00

Revised Amount
SSfl.W.M
S17.fin.U
554.005.00

Vendor a 275119.B001

Slate Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Tide Job Number Current Amount
increese

(Decreese)
Revised Amount

2023 074-500S89 Welfare Assistance 92057053 $0.00 $43,469.00 $43,469.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assbtance 920S70S3 $0.00 $28,081.00 $26,081.00

Sub Total $0.00 $69,550.00

Overall Total S0.00| - S27S.B06.00| 527S.8Q6.00|

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Paie 1 ol1

r



New. Hampshire Department of Health and Human Seivices
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID U RFP.2023.DBHH)8.EFFEC

Project Title Effective'Practlces for the Treatment of .Oploid and.Stimulant Use Disorders

/

Maximum

Points

Available

Blue Heron;

Neurofeedback

& Counseling

Community

Council of

Nashua dba

Greater Nashua

Mental Health

Easterseals of

NH Farnum.

Hope'on Haven
Hill • ' . .

Technical

Development Plan (01) 50 45 45 24 48

Implementation Fieri (02)" 50 45 45 20 48

Engagement & Satisfaction (03) ■  30 12 27 14 28 .

Aftercare Survey (04) 20.. 10 15 8 15

Staffing Plan (05)' 20 * 18 17 5 18

Subtotal • Technical 170 130 149 71 157

Cost

Budget Sheet (Appendix E) "  70 ■ 49 60 21 60

Program Staff List (Appendix F) '  30' . 9 21 9 22

Subtotal • Cost 100 58 ■ 81 30 82

TOTAL POINTS 270 188 230 101 239

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST | $152.251 $57,344 $103,087 $69,550 I

Reviewer Name

. I
' (Amanda Spreeman

2 Melissa Girard

Kassandra Martin

Title

SOR Contracls & Program Mngr

iSOR Finance Manager

[SOR Data Analyst



DocuSign Envelop© ID: 6E0097EE-OB71-4EA3-d46^104CA0102BCF
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject: RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-03
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing (he contract.

AGREEMENT

Thc-StateofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

l-.l State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

y  '

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Cohcord.NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

158 US Route 108, Suite D, Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-841-5353

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-920510-

70400000-074-500589

' 1.7 Completion Date

9/29/2023

1.8 Price Limitation

569,550

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

Robert \V. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 3/21/2023
V—OocuSlgnrt by:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Kerry Norton

Executive Director'

1.13 Stole Agency Signature 3/22/2023
OocttSlBftrt by:

1  S-

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja s. FOX

Director

1.15 Approvafoy iKcT^.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Appro\'al by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
/»—DoevSlonvtf by:

On:3/«/2023

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 6E0D97EE-0B71-4EA3-9465-104CAO102BCF

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified In block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNcw Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics hcrcundcr, shall
become cfTectivc on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the dale the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
ihe Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the Slate shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay (he
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7:'

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligaiioris of the Stale hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcrcundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hercunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement imrncdiatcly upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
ore identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

• compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
•have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Stale reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
Itercunder,"exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Comracior .'shall comply witli all applicable sialute.s, laws,

regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duly upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement "is
funded in any part by monies of the Uniled.Statcs, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall ai.so comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agfccmcru, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or oITicial, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

. 7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcreunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one. or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and-rcquiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser spccincation of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days aflcr giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor; ,
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any. damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Stale to enforce any provisions hereof aficr
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Stale to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fiHcenflS) days afler the date
of termination, a report ('.Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The fonn, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
'finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any properly which has been received from
the State or purchased with fund.s provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of (he State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data .requires
prior wittcn approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of'its
officers, employees, agents or mcmbers shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. .

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not a.ssign, or otherwise transfer, any

■interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fificcn (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, .a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or Indirect owner of fi fty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Slate.
The Slate is entitled to copies of all.subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
parly.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any persona) injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Slate, its officers or ernployccs, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissio««f the
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 6EOD97eE^B71-4EA3.9465-104CA0102BCF

Conlracior, or subconlractors, including bm not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13. shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance: '•
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% ofthc whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described In subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrtificate{.s) of
insurance for all Insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificaiefs) of insurance
for all fcnewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the e.xpiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("ft^orkeis'
Conipensaiion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or a.ssignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block l.9,or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The Stale
shall not be responsible for payment of-any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of^ the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only afler approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Thi.s Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and constnied in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement i.s the wording.
cho.scn by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction .shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof. ,

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference' purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
intcr|)rciaiion, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. Inthe event anyof the provisions ofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrar)' to any stale or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This-Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and .supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions
/

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as foljows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subconlracls, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's perforrriance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually .provide the State with' a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02 " A-1.2 Contraclor Initials

Hope on Haven Hill. Inc. Page 1 of 1 ■
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New Hampshire Department of,Health and Human Services
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Optold and Stimulant Use Disorders

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

.  1.1. The Contractor .must develop and implement a behavioral-based intervention
Contingency Management Program (CMP) for individuals receiving outpatient
treatment for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) or Stimulant Use Disorders (StimUD).

1.2. The Contractor must ensure the CMP is available statewide, to individuals
who:

1.2.1. Are residents of or are experiencing homelessness in NH;

1.2.2. Are aged 18 and older; and

1.2.3. Meet the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth
Edition (DSM-5) criteria for an Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and/or
Stimulant Use Disorder (StimUD) as determined by a:

1.2.3.1. Licensed counselor; or

1.2.3.2. An unlicensed counselor who:

1.2.3.2.1. Is under the supervision of a licensed counselor;
or

■  . 1.2.3.2.2. Is working toward licensure; and

1.2.3.2.3. Has completed the required coursework for
licensure, as required by:

1.2.3.2.3.1. NH Board of Alcohol and Other

Drug Use Providers;

1.2.3.2.3.2. NH Board of Mental Health

Practice; or

1.2.3.2.3.3: NH Board of Psychology.

1.3. The Contractor ensure the Contingency Management Program (CMP) provides
.positive-reinforcement for evidence of desired behavioral change to individuals
receiving outpatient treatment for OUD and/or StimUD. The Contractor must
ensure CMP services:

1.3.1. Are provided in conjunction'with existing evidence-based Intensive
Outpatient (IQP) and Outpatient (OP) levels of care;

1.3.2. Are informed by peer-reviewed research and evidence specific to
contingency management for pregnant and parenting people.

1.3.3. Are based on strengths of the individual;

1.3.4. Are based on evidence of the individual's specific, defined, and
positive behavioral change;
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1.3.5; Address the individual's ambivalence'about decreasing substance
use;

1.3.6. Create the opportunity to establish positive expectations;

1.3.7. Allow the individual to have power in decision making regarding their
treatment; and'

1.3.8. Assist the individual to modify their behaviors to achieve and sustain
recovery.

1.4. The Contractor must ensure CMP development includes focus groups with
individuals receiving existing outpatient services, to identify needs and receive
feedback on program development.

.  1.5. The Contractor must provide the Department with Program Summary for review
and approval within 10 days of the contract effective date. The Contractor must
ensure the Summary clearly outlines the proposed CMP including', but not

^  limited to:

1.5.1.' Program structure and policies.

1.5.2. A matrix of available incentives and associated target behaviors for
each. The Contractor must ensure incentives;

1.5.2.1.' Are valuable and desirable to the Participant:

1.5.2.2. Are awarded to the Participant at time of targeted behavior
achievement;

1.5.2.3. Increase in value weekly as the Participant demonstrates
consistency In achieving the targeted behavior;

1.5.2.4. Do not exceed a value of $15 per incentive, per Participant;
and

1.5.2.5. Do not exceed a total value of $75 per Participant, per year;
and

1.5!2.6. Are in no way construed as influencing client or external
partner perceptions of parenting skills or resources.

1.5.3. Frequency for incentive award and distribution that ensures program
participants have multiple opportunities throughout the course of their
treatment to receive Incentives.

1.5.4. Internal process'for tracking incentive award and distribution.

1.6. The Contractor must provide individuals who meet the criteria, described in
Section 1.2, with detailed program information and offer them the opportunity
to participate .in the program. The Contractor must ensure CMP information
includes, but is not limited to:

1.6.1. Program'overview including, but not limited to: ' '
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1.6.1.1. Clear and detailed expectations of the targeted behavior(s).

1.6.1.2. How the targeted behavtor(s) is/are measured.

1.6.1.3.' How incentives are earned and distributed.

1.6.1.4.' Duration of program.

1.6.2.. Program structure and policies Including but not limited to:

1.6.2.1. Enrollment.

1.6.2.2. Data collectibn.

1.6.2.3. Surveys.

1.6.2.4. Discharge.

1.7. the Contractor must ensure all individuals who choose to participate in the
CMP (herein after referred to as Participants), and their guardian if applicable,
receive, review, and sign an informed consent prior to program participation.
The Contractor must ensure informed consent includes, but is not limited to:

1.7.1. Risks and benefits of participation.

1.7.2. Notice of privacy practices shall be provided to the Department upon
request.

1.7.3. Notice of ability to rescind consent.at any time.

1.8. The Contractor must ensure the signed informed consent form is kept in the
Participant's CMP record.

1.9. The Contractor must-ensure eligible participants who decline to participate in
the CMP;

1.9.1. Will not be denied any treatment services for which they are eligible;-
and

1.9.2. Will be offered the opportunity to enroll during their next scheduled
SUD treatment services appointment.

1.10. The Contractor must ensure Participants who are discharged from the CMP
are given the opportunity to reapply for admission to the program.

1.11. The Contractor must meet with Participants weekly for CMP check-in. During
weekly CMP check-in, the Contractor must:

'  1.11.1. Update the Participant on the number of weeks they have participated
in the program and the number of weeks remaining;

1.11.2. If the Participant has achieved the targeted behavior(s), the Contractor
must provide the Participant with:

1.11.2.1. Positive reinforcement for the behavior(s): and

1.11.2.2. The corresponding earned incentive. ' "
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1.11.3. If the Participant has not achieved the targeted behavior(s). the
Contractor must;

1.11.3.1. Discuss and problem solve any barriers to program
■attendance or participation.

1.11.3.2. Offer support and encouragement to lake positive steps and
continue to engage in their recovery efforts.

1.11.4. Assist the Participant connecting with community-based services to
■  support treatment and recovery as applicable.

1.12. The Contractor must ensure earned incentives are awarded to Participants at
the time of targeted behavior{s) achievement.

1.13. The Contractor must ensure Participant records related to the CMP are
recorded and maintained separate from the Participant's clinical outpatient
record.

1.14. The Contractor must ensure the CMP is implemented to fidelity. The Contractor
must:

'l .14.1. Consult with the Department on CMP adaptations, as needed, to meet
the needs of the individuals served: and

1.14.2. Ensure CMP adaptations are not implemented prior to, or without,
Department approval.

1.15. The Contractor must conduct continuous quality improvement to determine
needs or modifications.

1.16. The Contractor must ensure the CMP is implemented no later than 90 days
after the contract approvaf date.

1.17. The Contractor must comply with all current and future federal and state laws,
rules, and regulations, regarding this scope of work.

1.18. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management and improve results.

1.19. The Contractor must participate.in meetings with the Department, on a monthly
basis, or as othenwise requested by the Department.

1.20. Program Markkinq
1.20.1. The Contractor must develop marketing materials to be used for

program outreach. The Contractor must ensure CMP marketing
materials:

1.20.1.1. Educate individuals receiving services and service providers
about the CMP including, but not limited to:

s
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1.20.1.1.1. Benefits and successes of using this approach
in conjunction with other evidence-based

:  , treatment modalities;

1.20.1.1.2. Program overview.

1.20.1.1.3. Program structure and policies.

1.20.2. The Contractor must ensure all CMP-related marketing materials are
submitted to the Department for review and approval prior to
distribution of materials.

1.21. CMP Aftercare Survevs

1.21.1. The Contractor must administer CMP Aftercare Surveys, as provided
by the Department, to each participant upon discharge from the CMP,,
to assess overall program experience, satisfaction, and outcomes.

1.21.2. The Contractor must utilize a digital survey software, e.g. Survey
•  Monkey or equivalent, to administer survey, collect participant

responses, and analyze-survey results. The Contractor must ensure
surveys;

1.21.2.1. Allow for only anonymous responses, so participants feel
safe in giving honest feedback;

1.21.2.2. Shall not elicit a response that would collect personally
identifiable, meaning information that would allow for the
constructive identification of any individual and that there is

• no reasonable basis to believe the data could be used, alone
or Jn combination with, other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to" identify an
individual who is a subject of the information, protected
health, ^SUD, or other state or federally regulated
information;

1.21.2.3.'Are reviewed and approved by the Department prior to
distribution: and

1.21.2.4. Are reviewed and utilized for program enhancement and
improvement.

1.21.3. The Contractor must ensure survey results data are aggregate and de-
identified.

1.21.4. The Contractor must share aggregate, non-identifiable survey results
with the Department as requested.

1.22. Data Entrv Reouirements

1.22.1. The Contractor must provide the Department with aggregate, non-
-  identifiable data that supports the CMP Contract deliverablfei^he
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Contractor must:

1.22.1.1. Work with the Department's Contractor, Arkansas
Foundation for Medical Care Inc. (AFMC), to obtain
authorization to enter CMP data into .AFMC's REDCap
system, which will be used by AFMC to provide aggregate
reporting to the Department.

1.22.1.2. Enter aggregate, nonTidentifiable CMP data into the AFMC
system on a monthly basis. The Contractor must ensure
data entered includes:

1.22.1.2.1. Demographics;

1.22.1.2.2. Number of individuals served;'

1.22.1.2.3. Number of CMP sessions attended per
individual:

1.22.1.2.4. Number of individuals who completed the
CMP;

1.22.1.2.5. Number of individuals who did not complete the
CMP and reason(s) for non-completion;

1.22.1.2.6. Type, number, and cost of gift cards provided,
. per individual; and

1.22.1.2.7. Other CMP data as determined and requested
by the Department.

1.22.2. The Contractor must ensure aggregate and de-identified data
excludes information that would allow for the constructive identification ■

of any individual, meaning that there is no reasonable basis to believe
that the data could be used, alorie or in combination with other
reasonably available information, by an anticipated recipient to identify
an individual who is a subject of the information.

1.23. Reporting

1.23.1. The Contractor will be providing the Department with aggregate data
from its clients .to support the Contract deliverables and will not be
handling or storing regulated or identifiable data on the Department's
behalf.

1.23.2. The Contractor must ensure at no time will the Contractor share its

client personally identifiable information, protected health information,
SUD or other state or federally regulated information with the
Department verbally, digitally or hard copy in association with this
Contract.

1.23.3. The Contractor must provide monthly reports to the Departm^,o»n a
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format approved by the Department. The Contractor must ensure
monthly CMP reports include only aggregate and non-identifiable data
including;

1.23.3.1. Demographics;

1.23.3.2. Number of individuals served;

1.23.3.3. Number of sessions individuals attended;

1.23.3.4. Number of individuals completing the CMP;

1.23.3.5. Number of individuals not completing the CMP and
reas6n(s) non-completion;

1.23.3.6. Number and cost of gift cards provided, per individual; and

1.23.3.7. Other factors as determined by the Department.

1.23.4. The Contractor must submit monthly CMP Participant Survey results
to the Department, in a format approved by the Department. The
Contractor must ensure survey results data is aggregate and non-
identifiable.

1.23.5. The Contractor may be required to provide other data and metrics to
the Department In a formal specified by the Department.

1.24. Staffing

1.24.1. The Contractor and its program staff must attend the CMP training,
provided by the Department's designated trainer, prior to CMP
implementation.

1:24.2. The Contractor must recruit and maintain sufficient staff assigned to
the CMP necessary to perform and carry out all of the functions,
requirements, roles and duties as proposed. The Contractor must
ensure CMP staff are trained:

1.24.2.1. On the program model prior to working in the program;

1.24.2.2. To safeguard the confidentiality,-privacy, and information
security of the participant information; and

1.24.2.3. Any access to Department databases shall require
completion of Department information- security training as
required.

1.25. Performance Measures

1.25.1. The Contractor must provide key data in a format and at,a frequency
specified by the Department for the following performance measures:

1.25.1.1.95% of participants-.complete the required sessions in the
CMP; ,
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1.25.1.2.95% of participant assessments demonstrate the treatment
plan was based on the participants strengths and identified
motivational incentives; and

1.25.1.3.90% of participants decreased to stopped stimulant use
after 90 days of completion of the program as indicated
through aftercare survey results

T.25.2. The Department may include other performance, measures in the
resulting contract(s).

1.26. State Opioid Response fSOR) Grant Standards

1.26.1. The Contractor must establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with the Doorways in compliance with all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive
payments for services funded with SOR resources.

1.26.2. The Contractor must ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doorways
are:

1.26.2.1. Completed and documented in the individual's file; and

1.26.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as needed for
payment of invoices for services provided through SOR-

■  funded initiatives.

1.26.3. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services, rendered
from SOR funds, have a documented history or current diagnoses of
Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) or Stimulant Use Disorders (SlimUD) or
are at risk for such.

1.26.4. The ■ Contractor must coordinate completion of Government
Performance Results Act (GPRA) initial interview and associated
follow-ups at six (6) months and discharge for individuals referenced
previously.

1.26.5. The Contractor must ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to
purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or for providing treatment
using marijuana. The Contractor must ensure:

1.26.5.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of OUD or

StimUD.

1.26.5.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or
organization that provides or permits marijuana use for the
purposes of treating substance' use or. mental health
disorders.

1.26.5.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and
Memorandums of Understanding that receive SOR furi^jng.
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1.26.6. The Contractor must ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals

utilizing SOR funding.

1.26.7. If the Contractor intends to distribute Fentanyl test strips, the selected
.  Applicant(s) must provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the

Department for approval prior to implementation. The selected
Applicant(s) must ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited
to;

1.26.7.1. Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips;

1.26.7.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

1.26.7.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

1.26.8. The Contractor must provide services to eligible individuals who:

1.26.8.1. Receive Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) services
from other providers, including the individual's primary care
provider;

■  1.26.8.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

1.26.8.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as
prescribed regardless of the class of medication.

1.26.9. The Contractor must ensure individuals-who refuse to consent to

information'sharing with the Doorways do not receive services utilizing
SOR funding.*

1.26.10. The Contractor must ensure individuals who rescind consent to

information sharing with the Doorway do not receive any additional
services utilizing SOR funding.

1.26.11. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department and other SOR
funded Contractors, as requested and directed by the Department, to
improve GPRA collection.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor rhust comply with all Exhibits D through H and J, which are
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes.

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Lingui/STTd^lly
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Appropriate'Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from , the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
, original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. . Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
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or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the'
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during-the term .of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical .data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accprdance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include,^without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for rhaterials. inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and

■  eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all

'V : invoices submitted to. the Department to obtain payment for such
' ■'vV services.

4.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

4.2. During the term.of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to- the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department

■  retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

U;
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, from the State Opioid Response (SCR) II Grant,
as awarded on August 29, 2022, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Seivices
Administration, CFDA 93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

2. For the,purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B," Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

4. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services rendered from SOR
funds have a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder
or Stimulant Use Disorder.

5. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-1, SFY 2023 Budget and
Exhibit C-2. SFY 2024 Budget.

6. The Contractor must seek payment for services, as follows:

6.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other
payor sources.

6.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare, if applicable.

6.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as
follows:

6.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care
Organization (MCO). the Contractor shall be paid in accordance
with its contract with the MCO.

6.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for

services on the Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

6.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with either
the Contractor's Sliding Fee Scale Program or the Sliding Fee Scale
provided by the Department.

6.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale
remains unpaid, charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

7. The Contractor must submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation
in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the

^ ' • M'

I
RFP-2023-DBH-08-EFFEC-02 C-2.0 Conlractor Initials 3
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Pago 1 of 4 Date



DocuSign Envelope 10: 6E0097Ee-0871-4EA3-9465.lp4CA0102BCF

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opiold and Stimulant Use Disorders

EXHIBIT C

following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month.

8. The Contractor must ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to
the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices must not include any client
protected health information or personally identifiable information and shall be
net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this
agreement. The Contractor must ensure:

8.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

8.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

8.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees
worked for wages reported under this contract.

8.1.2;i. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal
awards for salaries , and wages must be based on
records that accurately reflect the work perfornned. "•

8.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates; which are
available from the Department upon request.

8.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

8.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

8.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other.programs.

8.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract

8.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

8.1.3.1.4. Food or water.

8.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe,
or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana.

8.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

8.1.3.1.7. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for
clients.

8.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

8.1.5. Cost center reports.

8.1.6. Profit and loss report.

8.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance
Advices dp not need to be supplied with the invoice, but should
be retained to be available upon request.

8.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or
offset based on third party revenue received. f

RFP-2023-OBH-08-EFFEC-02 C-2.0 Contraclof Initials ̂ /2V2p2 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders

EXHIBIT C

8.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue
■  .and other financial information as requested by the Department.

8.2. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesbdas@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

9. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with
further restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

10. The Contractor agrees that invoices submitted late may be subject to non
payment.

11. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of . each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

12. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date. ■ ' .

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
■obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

14. Audits

14.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:
14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in

federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Comniission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant

RFP.2023-OBH-0&-EFFEC-02 C-2,0 Conlraclor Initials 3/21/202 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Effective Practices for the Treatment of Opioid and Stimulant Use Disorders

EXHIBIT C

dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.qov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements

. of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
awards.

14.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports, on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of Ih^e Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any slate or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

-09

yj
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L. .100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 4.1
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to-the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1:3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);'
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of '

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaJ^agency

Exhibit D - Certincalion regarding Drug Free Vendor Inillals
Workplace Requirements 3/21/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so corivicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or • .

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a.good faith effort lo continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3. 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee rnay insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: Hope on Haven Hill

e-'gMd by:
Date • Name"^^**^^^'Norton

Title. Executive Director

■OS

Exhibit 0 - CcrtiDcaUon regarding Drug Free Vendor initials,
iWorkf^ace Requirements 3/21/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Section 1,3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): i
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall .require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Hope on Haven Hill

—DftcuSlgnetf b)r:

3/21/2023

Dii^ ■
■ Title:

tEH™

■

Executive Director

-OS

Exhlbll E - Certificalion Regarding Lobbying Vendor initials^
3/21/2023
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identided in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions .of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's •
representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following •
Certlficalion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providmg the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. ■ A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended., ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of redords
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F -■ Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension • Contractor Initials ;
And Other Responsibility Matters 3/21/2023
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Exhibit F

"Snr.

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
. person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a.participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation .In this traiisaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. VVhere the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by .subfnittlng this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions;" without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name; Hope on Haven Hill

—Oo«u8lfl"*fd by;

Umj3/21/2023

Diti ' 'NaM^?=^''-Norton
Title. Executive Director

Exhibit F - Cortlficalion Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters 3/21/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute.the following
certification:

Contractor will comply,'and will require any subgrantees'or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrirriinatlon requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964.(42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race.' color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, In regard to employmerit and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279.(equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Erpployee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Contractor Initials
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, -religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of .the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name: Hope on Haven Hill

n

Dale Name: Kerry Norton

Title. Executive Director

Uy
Exhibit G

ConlraclOf Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also knovyn as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not.be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply .
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Hope on Haven Hill

/''~Oo<uSlgn«d by;

3/21/2023 McAa.

Dili , N"mef°^"ry Norton

Execufive Director

Exhibit H - Certinc^tion Regarding Contractor initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke 3/21/2023
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NPw Hampshlro Dopartmon. of Haalth and Hu^a^Sarvlcea

Tne Federal Funding Aocoun.dilifv and

fnlLl award is below $2^000 f date of the award.$25,000, the award Is "J® meJort^ng Subawa?d and Executive GompensaOon Information), the
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Repo g following Information for any

1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

I NAlCs\S?contracts/CFDA program number for grants
I AwardUtirde^riptive of the purpose of the funding action

-  7. Location of the entity
8  Principle place of peTformance
9 UniQue identifier of the entity (UEI #)

g^s rvenrs" e from the Federal government, and those
f02 throughre.^^^

prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendnient is made provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Contractor identified in SecUon ̂ ,09-282 and Public Law 110-252,
The Federal Funding Information), and further agrees

execute the following Certification: --^hoh infnrmation as outlined above to the NH

^epalmenro™ b^d'Hum^ to comply ̂ th all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Hope on Haven Hill

3/21/2023

DecuSlgryed byt

Date Title: Executive Director

CUX)HHSni07l3

Exhibll J - Certiricatlon Regordlno
Accounlabillty And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance

Pago 1 of 2

Contrador InHiah

Date

OS

3/21/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

•FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  . RTFMllTNjeeS
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annuai gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,.subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in anriual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or

cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here * . '

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986? ■

,N0 YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:..

Name:,.

Name:.

Amount:

Amount:

Name:,.

Amount:.:.

Amount:

Name:; Amount: •

CU/DHKS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Foderal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initials

Date

U/

3/21/2023


